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1! OVERVIEW

Group snapshot

Revenue

Revenue has increased by
over 82% in the last 3 years
frorm £390m in 2020 to
£712m in 2022

Energy generation

Our renewable energy
assets produce enough
energy to power over
a million UK homes

Number of employees

We employ over 1,690
people

Carbon offsets

Qur renewable energy sites’
carbon saving is over 822,600
carbon tonnes this year

Number of loans
Over the' year we
provided financing to, on
average 182 borrowers
in the UK

Number of sites

We own 220 renewable
enarqy sites spread
predominantly across
the UK
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Chief Executive’'s review

Our Group was ir a solid positon Coming ou” of
the iockdown respanze 1o Covid-1%9, and ¢

u
LUSINess fas cormnued o perform robustly

throughout the year, This year has seen some
unforecasted growth in vaiue of certain dwisions

primarly driver by tme Ircrease in energy prices

Fern Trading Limiied {"t=e Comoany” or together

.
WIS SLb

seidiaries 'the Group’) targets consisient

growtt for sharahoders ever the iong term, with g

focus on steady and predictable growih, this is
particularly important

cconom c conditions

mature business et

durimg more crallengirg
. We have o dversfed and
UIng a Grous with more fman
rad

coraprses rrore than 300 comeanies trhat have
operated in a rance of seciors over Marny years
generatmg steady long-term growth ‘o our

olaers
we expect (o perforr steanily tarough market

anerate i1 assenual sectors that

voatnity.

From this secure nase we nave
incremenital exparsior ard divers;

measdred way Trough seeing ol Opoofturitaea ~

new adjacent sactors, These seclors proviac us

wethy & slatform 1o continue (D expand In line with

ar exlsung strategy Today, our Group Corrpnses
eneray. progerty lending, rezltincare irfragiracoire,

finre and ho.

builcing divis.ons. We have grown
to be a significart presencs within our "Most
estabhsnad sectors, producing 4.2% of the UK's

salar energy and 1.7% cf the UK's onshare wind

v

nergy ouput, and bailding a £E2810m short and

medurm term lending business that faciitatas the
nstruchcn ard mprovement of hr:-r:”es

e e

W

hrg mstory and ambiror The Group

increase 0 the value of our ensrgy div sion was
sLppored oy sold operatio=al performance across
ail segters and scme arganic growth in newer
ceCtors

We remann 3 SUpoo
1,690 full-tme staff

own and o

riuve employer with more than
tha busingsses that we

operate, ang indirect e

SCIO%S

icloyment

Lmdr@dg more p one through
s

A reflection on our year

Orur business raisec £404m from nvestors this year,

delvered consistert reverues whi'e g-awing capital

nt

The financial stateme
cperating profit

expepted cutcome of a sm

Bofors tax

robuil performance s a drect resul of erergy
producead by the group Se ng sold for hugher prces
during the year &0% of our busress

Cormprises reng waile eNnergy general ng assets suc ch

as selar energy sies and wind farms, wh oh provide

ong-tenm avence strearms These are intentionaly
diversified across & range of technologiés o mutigate
aganst poct cerformance in & specific 3ector and

COrtrpute [Owarcs
growth, nowaevar th

teady, predicrable share price
ervalues car sl oe Impacea

g and dernand

| mMaterial increases in long e

by changes m pric We have seen
comnsecutve and
er';e'gy' pr.ce forec

g Dally over the las

asts and energy fhrwa"i rates
115 morniths as the gooa
econormy recovers frorr the Covd-12 oardem.c,

ard seeks alternzgtive soLrces o

RTINS, AJcng wih imhaton, these

Fave materally norezsed the vaue of the

Our as3els ir Wese seciorns nave o
year w th the acguis bon of sites n corrplemenriary
Jursdctions as wel a3 usir.g QU EXDETT 5E 1C 2nler

the UX

COMMSCid. aryg fr ausinal rcoftop sear
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Chief Executive's review

markets and starting construchon 01 & arge wind
farmi in Adstralia. At the start of the year we added
reng acdonal sites o
which brings us up to 26 sites ntotal comoared to

DUF reserve power division

ten sites for most of 20211 These sites have
performed anead of expectations, generating
EBMOA of £26m {2021 £1m) during the year.
stablished bicmass
SVISIoN Contnues 1o Qerform wel and has

n 205,

JEar‘ry pleased o see

Cur suecessful ang well

delivered s able returns since acquist on

This year, | nave been part ¢
strong performarce at our newaest Diomass site in

Snetterton, East Anglia, w'cn was acqured in April

J

2321, oroving to be a vaiuabie adoiton o the
Gusiness. During the year we purchased & Waste-
ro-Erergy facility currently under construchion in
Ayrshire, The facility has been in developmeni for
tnree years and wll be capable of processing over
185,600 tonnes per annum of non-recyclable
household, commercial and ndusinal waste which
would othenwise be sent to landfll or exported
Thris wil generate 17 MiWe of low carbon glectr.oty,
encugn o power 30,060 nores # will be the first
large-ccale, subsidy free waste-to-energy project in
western Scotland and projected corpiet.on date is
in early 2024

O

ver secent years, many cf our energy assets have
beer under corsiruycticn which has contribute
Our previously repcrted accounting losses. This s
typical of sucn businesses durng growth prass
evers when cash generative, becalse firance costs
and accounting charges, such as depreciation,
exceeded revenues This division has now reacned
our target size and sector splt.

ordmgly th
accouﬁtmg proﬁt before tax of E48m agamnst our
budgeted smail acgounting proft This cligntly
targer than expacted profit 1§ due o the matunty of
the portfolic and figher energy prices, resuling i
ircreaseq revenue from our energy division as well

year i am pleased o renort an

as an increase in inflaticn (as explamed below).

ittt

Cur property lending business rnakes up arourd
27% cf the Group ana comipnises short and medium
term secured loans to expﬂr enced property
nrofessionals. This estadlisked part of cur dusiness
contirued to perforrm wet-, following a srort penod
of siow dowr curng Covid-18 when we
intertionally chose to write fewer loans Cur average

car book was 182 loars th's year to UK oorrcwers
Ourending ¢

nservative 1oan o value laveis
der that it maintamns access

visIoN has aways ooeraied at
(

@)
&
<
=3
[
o
o
D
W
1
a
-
=
B

=
=

o

nere s a reduciion n prooerty values
as served the Group weil snce ing pto 12 years
f cha

g nd it has operated through pencd

[Ty

7y

several tmes The Groun s taking a rwaturaHy
cawlious agproach when aszessirg rew lendmg
opportunities i ight of the changing econormic
outloox. To date, the Group has lent £2 2bn of
property leans since incestion in 2010, sufferng
only £6rn in capital losses. This strong track recors
is the razult of our careful approacn m this sactor,
compnsng disciolned due diligence, censervavve
lean-to-vaiue ral os and an ability and willing

duce activity i this sector gurirg umes of
economic uncertainty, We will conltnue ¢ adopt
tris apnroach throughout the coming year

The heathcare division makes up around 4% of the
Group and 18 broadly performing wel, Qur
retirement villages business, Rangeord Holdings
Lirrited ("Rangeford”) continued o sell apartnents
st three stes, commenced construcicn of 3 fourth
village ir Chertsey, and acquired 2 fifth lacation
near Cambridge durng the year. Sales at the
Chertsey site are expected to commence in 2524,
whille construction at the Camoridge site 5
expected to star: in 2023 with the first sales
commencing in 2026

Our fibre division was establisned in 2019 and
remains an area of growsh for tne Group, now
COMQIISinG Of gix operaﬁng businesses Our
esidential busiresses, Jurassic Fibre, Swisn Fibre,

;’i: i
e i

;ifwu »&wim R

e

Shetkiat
Bl e 4
tht

“2‘%!53»&&*6;5&&




Chief Executive’s review

Gigaret and Allpo rts Fibre are Suiding ultrafast
‘fibre to the premuses” broadbana networks in

regions of the UK which nave been overlgoked by

Giganst orovices conmectivi yt
ng CetyFi
scfiware

de «elopm?“ ormpany which has develoned

proonetary software 1o aliow Internet Service

Providers (o selt cornentivity over wholazaie enabied

retworks,

neiuding Al
LK's anly c‘ed

coints mibre. Vorbose 15 ing

cated entorprse fibre networ‘«' o focus

or Rrovicing

M-

connec O busnesses in Londacn

In the yveas our residential fibre businesses

continued o nvest capital in éxpanding ther

bW Orks Rorre Counties, the Zouth an

Southwest of England, and are now onboardrmyg

CUSIOMMErs 1o thelr natworks, g ereranng re \,urrmq
revenil

reElworks

e for the Group. Our siate-of the art

are abie o meet customer derna~a for
higher broadoany speeds required as a rezult of
more workwg— from-hiome and ncreased uzage of

vides-on-demara services 'n London, Yorboss has

2.50 conurued to buitc} and nas mnstaled over
50Ckm of fore with & commitment 1o of

L0 10 15 000

o O e
er L00hos

busnesses n Centran London

Towards the end of the year, we added a new
nroperty develops
of Ciivia Horres ("Eivia”) for

estaplished no

21 1o the Group, with the accuisition

E85M. Shvi

w

is an
use pundear develoning rmiud-raarket

Femes in Leadon commuter towns ana

vilages Whig this repre 5 a very small part of the
Crour, we plan 1o grow £ ir a measured way over

itk an ultimate targe: o deiver
ncracing 250 high cuality

strorg Sxnstng

N\a has a

S WG ave key G runaing the busingss,

faebuarrabrat ey ma gy s

Inflation and Interest rates
The higher rate of inflauon expenenced this year
ras been respons ble for some of the
outcerformance aga.nst expectations in th
Company's share one
High nftat

l“ﬂ Treasury forecasr that
Rort is li<ely 1o De present uni: 2025, a5 a
erult we expect 10 receive more revenug for the
energy gererated within our energy division, ang
ment subsiches that

sites persfil fromr,

Aigher value from the governir
some Gf Our enery
the va.ug of the

r‘ﬁr_feasfr‘g

L a short perod o
righ inflat on such as forecast has very e e“feci

on the rate at wh.ch tha Group s expected 1o grow

% beca.
derive the ¥ valug from

shflows over tre |

operawe for, typicaly 20 years ot
aze, the

once sholld De postive

outlook for long e nflaton wers o incre
TARacl on o shave

cecause It wouls increase the revenue sach of cur

stet would expect to meke, in conrast o a

oiztvealy fxed cost Dase

Tre expected rse In nierest rates 1s forecast o

retar to normal afier a sigaifcant period of very

‘ow rates The mmediate moact of th.s on our
ousiness is expectac to be broadly reutral s.nce

Crared so as not to

s erosion when inters

our Group i intenuonaty stru

riffcant va

experierce 5iq

rates crange We contnue to tlake a cautious

acorcach within our iending business where the
nsing interest rates are felt mare closely, and we
edguce the number of

wie write, or alter the risk profile 0 cur loans

loans

rave the abl Uy
througn reducing loar to value ratics o pausing
aciivity i certait parts of the mar<et shoulz that

fae! appropriate
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Chief Executive’s review

Current trading and outlook

5ince tne year end. the Groug has centinued to
perform steacily from an cperational perspective
and in line with our expectations aloeit we have
seen share price growth ahead of target due to the
cortinued :ncrease in long tery energy price
forecasts. Our growtn targets for the Grougo over
the mediim and long term remain urchanced and
diversified
business that .s cagaole of delivering more

growtn for shareholde

We Cortinge to focds o7 rraintaining a

predictalb

The recently annourced Elecincity Gererawor Levy
"EGL witnin the 2023 Finance Bill,

mpact ori the returns geresrated from QL Snerdy

wiil mave ar

: further
on nage 27

orifolio over tne next 5 years. This is

d\SCUSSEU wothe group finance raview

Dur property lerdirg business confirues t

perform strongly, with increased deployment in ta:s
SO focus on short term
loans {our average current loan term s 17 morthe)
which enanles us to adag: o changes in sutook
portant in the

since the year eng. We

swafily, we feel this s particularty s
current econcmic cimate.

Performarce in ur healthcare divsion continues
to be stable, and we conunue 10 remain positive
about the opporunites o improve perfomrmance n

this sacior.

Since year end, we have continued 0 oulid out our
fbre netwaorks, with constructicn tracking i~ une
with

opparturihes for both orgame and yorganic

auUr expeciancns We continug 1o review

growtn supnoring cur existng manajament team

in delivering tris strategy.

In December 2022 we higve acguired the nghts to
£25m of right 1 use mobl 2

UK, thus max ng the first step towards becorrimg an

icenses from Three

rooile virtual Netwsr operator

Cur rmix of pusiness areas has devecped over time
ead, d

Dy the overarehurg rmportence we place ofn

anc may evolve furiher over the years ah irnven
meeting the objectves of our sharehc.ders. Ts

snould not be read as any indicanon of 2 wnolesale

s

=l

change in the sectors 1 whch we o
role piayed gy the strategic

perate, oLt as
reflection of the
ers interests

mandate i~ protecting sharehold

“Qur mix of business areas has
developed over time, driven by
the overarching importance
we place on meeting the

objectives of our shareholders.

g




Our business at a glance
Wihat we do

Ferm Trading Limsted (Fern’ s the parent company
of nearly 320 subsidianes tlogether the "Group”). Our
Croup operates acrass five key areas eniergy,
reglthcare, lending, fibre and house bulding. Over
thie past twelve years wa have buiit a carefully
diversified group of operating pusinesses thal are
weall positiored to degver Wong-tarrm value and
predictaole growth far our shareholders

1. Energy division
We generate power from sustainatle sources and

selt the erergy procuced either directy 1o ngusina:
CONSUMers o7 10 Grge nety

cris. Many of our
renewable energy sies quat'’y for governmpent
Incentves, whioh represent an adaitiona) source of

ncome We nave also utilisen our exgertise in

renewable erergy o construct fac lives for sale or
crngoing operation At year erd the Group nad
n

21 sites under construsthion

2. Healthcare division

We provide hormes ang lesure fatiities to our
ageng popuweton, and Drivate hospitals which
orovide nigh-quality Bealthcare services across

operational sites nthe UK

3. Lending division

We ena or a shortand rmeduim term, secured
casis to alarge numiber of property professicnals
We also provide fnarcirg 1o enable other business
to build assets ard otrer residential ara

commerc a. properties

4. Fibre division
We own and operate fibre broadbard nelworis
acrass vanoyus arezs of the UK We buiid the

retworks and connect them to homes andg

pusmnesses o provide our custarers witn ultra”

fiore proadbard

5. Home building division

Dunng the year, we succasiully entered the house

suilding sector, acgquring Blivia Hormes whior has a

strong track cecord of developing homes 0 a

service

sustainable marner Tne cornpany s a ful
propery developger megning it provides services

from the design, o the ergineenng anc then firal

CONSILCHON o ensure tne delvery of auality

workmanshio,

Sotar, wind,

biGrass, Property lending. -Rehremem Ulgafast fibre Residertial house
landifitl gas development villages, private broadband across builging
’ financing hospitals the UK

Tesernve power

Cperatii,at

Lorstranuen O
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Our business at a glance

Trhe strangtn of our Group's strategy is in ooth s businessas wiin comperehensive tusiness pians ard
operational diversity ard the reiurm profiie of these strong reanagemert teams This enables us to
husinesses Cur lending business pravides flexibuy continue to aiversify our business without

and strong returns over the short term, whie our compromising on the gaality of our operations.
energy, healfncare, iibre and noms buildirg Crver the past three years, we hiave successfully

clvistors offer vis.blity and stabily of returns over entared the Abre oroadband secior and we now
oW siX corpanies with exciting plans to aeliver

ultrafast croadband across the U<

the longer term.

The state of our bus ness 15 a key stre.ﬂgth, eratlrg
LS tO acguire large-scae estalbizhea operatiors as
we.d as the oppartunity 10 enter rew sectors with

rnimel risk to e whale Group by selectirg

Sector split”

Wind 22% - -

Property 27%

Fern's sector
allocation

: -~ Resarve power 2%
- Solar 1%

~-Fibre 5%
Solar 20% -~

—Healthcare 4%

Reserve power 6% ~ . LandFil gas and biormass 9%
Crher 3%

B W Owning and operating assets 69%
ME Lending 31%

rading cim'ted.

‘Sector spiitis givan by vatue, as represented on the comgany balance sheet of Fern i




Our business at a glance

Winere we operals

We are proud tnat the Dusinesses

ity our Grodp mare a D08
contnbution o socaety, fram
generating clean energy to tre
creation of hories ana the provision
of quality healthicara infrasruciure

Solar sites

Landfil gas facilitbes
Biornass Dower stahions
Wond farms

Reserye power pants

Retrercent vilages

734 R YORN

Hospitats

-

14

Fipre networks

As we've Qrown Our experiise it e

take our espartise to exciting opocridnitias over

Austrabia France, ire

-
h—
-

land. Fo.ard and Firard
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Our business at a glance

Making a difference

We zre proud o operate a Group that makes &

s 35 the UK,

gererating renewable energy, providing guanty

ve contnbution to saciety acro,

healtncare infrastructure ana
delivering high-speed brozdband to underseved
areas of the caountry

reurernent Lvirg and

Energy

We carrently ocwr 2
ST50W & year Tnat’
a milon hemes.

220 energy sites, producing
§ enough energy to power gver

QOur combiination of techroicgies. solar, wind.
reserve power, biomass and lendfill gas
comp.ement 2ack sther vl nelping the UK to

mest s energy targets irrespective of e weather

Tne Fern Communty Furd is a social erterprise ran

by the Group, whicn works to districute commurity
funds generated from our wind farmis This yesr the
Fern Commmunity Fund nas awarded E1.4m to local
community aroups, supportea 13 ocal uriversity
stddents through cur Student Scholarship Fund,
and providec a
wha arg lacal 1o the C

wirter fue: subsidy 10 706 residen’s
r(\up S ASS0NS

Healthcare

Our retrement villages provide high-qua.ity,
cantermzorary ving spaces, with 379
accommedation unts currently in place, and
schermes i var.ous stages of develcoment offering

over 500 addit:onal accormmaodation units

A friendly commundty 1s at the heart of our
retirement villages, which s why ir cur
central facilities and a

residents

developmenis we provide
hubs of soceat activity for cur

Lending
Tne loans we made during the year have heiged o
ton of student accormmodation

znd much needed resident-at properties.

fung the construc

We continue to extend (oars to 24 1axi drivers and
fleets to enable thern to use electric vernc.es,

reducing carbar ermissions in our capital.

Fibre
Through our fibre dwvision we are bulding out the
fiore optc broadband network across the UK Four
£ our managemen: teams are focus<ed on
bu|ld\r\g out fire optic broadband networks for
recidertial custor-ers and smal busnesses, and &
af:h s building a fibre network 1o deliver enferprise
conneclry iy, Cur sixths a software gevelo w'rr*'
compary coeraing in the fibre sector and

Provicing services to our Grous Companies

W thin this divisior we have plars o create a

,..

network providing conrectivity 1o cver one million
progerti=s In the next three years, many of which

are n small towns and villages that don't currently
have access Lo intermnet conrectvity & for rmodern

ways of working and commurnicating

mging
ties, they are
aisa generating errployment opportunitios for

dem.es and

Mot only are our fbre busnesses br
cornectivity to underserved commun

oung INdividuals via training aca

apprerticeskhio schiernes, and are dr ving diversioy in
Telecoms, with one of cur corrparies having
Launiched a number of initiatives to recruit worner

into the sector.

Home building

Our nome bunid'ng division utilises a -ugh
proportion of sustainable timber frame construct'on

methods and irsialis air source reat pumps in all

properties, leading the way in this secor and

helpirg reduce carbon emiss.ons

Crippioaeinh PRI eat
SRETSIE e !
23y SJUdTasieRR i my

yaRakL s gy saliadan i
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Our strategy in focus

Doy businessss

Energy

Through Qur energy divimion, the Gro
CoETAES ene

L owne and
gy sites which supoly
gle Ptrwcw*y inis the retwork, as wel a

Gas ana

as constructing
fire 220
twe own and operate, 134 provide

renewable energy sites for fuwire sale. O
engrgy sites that
rerewable energy‘, centrbuung to the Group's
position a largesl producers of

renewach energy from commercial scale solar sites
rnthe UK Energy sit
generaie sfable profts for many years, as such

cre of e

o5 are typscaily exonected o

3 atracive

owning and cperating these busine
e Group

ecaJie Of ther porential o delver

oreciciabie profits over the long 1erm

Renawable

ustainable

SNCrgy SIes gerarate power fram

sources and sell energy proguced eitner

tly 1o large moustrial consumers or to tne

etwork. Many of our rerewable energy sites also

bd
qualify for government imeentivez, wrick resulis in a

porzon of the gers

ated energy penefiting
rates that are locked in’ for a spacified penod onge

=1 F

a gualfying s

S IS f‘;,era*\on*’ ‘md accreditanon has
been granted. This has reduced sorme of the impact
of the volatuty in long-erm @mefgy nrice ferecasts

As mewy sites bullt in tne UK do nior quat®y for

Histor o government ncentives, we are seelng maore

interest o tre market for sites like the ones we own
and operate

Owning and operating energy sites 15 a core part of
our strategy and currrently rmakes up aimrost 60% of
the Groun's net assets. Trus part of our Group has

Did you know?

nar expeacied

it has the

gererated higher returnis this year i

due 1o market conditions nut crucially
Ntz to provde

\

i

(9]¢
term, This comoinati
oalance nsx and returm across the

O generate warget returrs for shareholde

achivitias
“Cur energy sites generated over
3,750 GWh of power.”

Due
are ghle to secure |t

o the high-guality erergy sres we own, we

long-term faancing from
Tamstrears opanks at cornpettive ratas W ernanas
oot returns, which helps s to deliver the leve! of

aturas our sharehcloens expecl.

Whle cur renewable @neray business siarted fe in
the solar energy sector the Group has built

expertise acros: other ad acent tezrrsologes
nCwdding onshore wnd, piomass gnd landhl
sdpportad by reserve powe

plants wrich provide
zackuo power 1o mrie Natioral Grid The Group
herefore benefis from dwversiication within this

cart of itg bus.nesa SCE Weaer conaitions ‘or

n stfﬁnger produ-:tlcm &

gans: s graficant beneht from s scale in this secto

&5 our husiness s spread across over 220 sites,
Sty reducng tne risk to Group prohtat
site suffars an cperationa disruption

v

if laid end to end, our solar
panels would stretch from

London to Mexico City.
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Our strategy in focus

in adciton to our UK sites, the Group is developing Since returnirg o rormal workn pa terrs we have

sites cverseas, in lerISd\CtIOﬂS that we understand seen an increase in the numoer uf patients caying
well These present an attractive opoortunity as they for their own treatment as they face icng waitling
usts for NS treatment Desoite the ﬂmg of

wiaespread restrictions across the UK, Covd-19

bulld on our secicr exgertise in countries at an
ezrlier stage of renewable development Currently
we operate wind farms in Ireland and France and
solar sites in “rance and Australia We have several

caonnnues to affect the acute care sector with a
stressed NHS and ncreased infectior contrat
wind sites Lnger construct or in Poland, Frarce measures that remain in place.

and Austraha, Lending
During the year we aczqu red nine reserve power Lending contineas to be a care part of our pusiress
planic and one erergy from waste site. Followirg 13 has provided the Group win a profitabe ana
cash generatve sector aver e past twelve years

Tris welk-established part o our Group mainty

construcien, we scld two wind farms in Fintand ard
shortly after the year end we also sold Darlirgton

Fon, a large =olar site in Aust-alia consists of praperty ‘endg g, wihich provices
perty -

Healthcare

shori-term finard g to expenencec profess oral
») let landlords seeking

Trrougn our tealthcare civisien, the Group

-to-
. Gp Tert financing,
operates In the prvate medical and retrement living

bridging finance; and deve
dr L term Anancirg

wh-ch provides shiort aric
secrors. Our retirement living business, Rangefore, e e
1o companies
OWnNs 310 operatas two reurement vilagas in
A key benefir of the scale of cur Group and of the
cusmness that we nave built up 1 this sector s our
abiity ta mit gate nisk through havirg a large

numoper of skort and mediam term loans spread

Wiitshire ana North Yerkshire and s currently
developing three furiher s tes ‘or fulure operations

Our private madical business, One Healthcare cwns
and operates two private hosoitals in Kent and

, grross small projects o rdwvidua, porrowers We
Hertfordshire, providing me very cest level of care

proactively manage codnterparty nsxs through

In modern, well equippec hosaital facilines
ungertaking caeful borrower dus cilgence, taung

"Lending continues to be a
important part of our
business and has provided
the Group with a profitable
and cash generative sector

over the past twelve years.
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Our strategy in focus

securily over assets typicaily on a first charge oasis
and mamtatrnng consarvative ican-to-value ratios
Mot all loars will perform as expected ard these
easures i’elp o mirrmise the impact of

performance ssues on an individual loan. Tris s
further mitigared trrough the value that we lend to
ndividuat borrowers, relative to our total ioan book,
nich s currertlyy spread Gn average across 182

lwans, with an average individual loan of £2 3m

Fibre division
Qur Are division ncludes five operaticna:

companies bulding bre networks in the UK and
e deveicument

one softwar Cormnpany

Throwgh cur residential Bibre businesses, we are
oulleing new phiysical Tore networs for

commurities in the UK and <o far have bullt out

finre infrastructure in undercerved paris of Devor
Somersat, Darset, Wllshire, Hamoshire,
Ware

aming to pass cver one milio

stershire and tne Horre Count'es, We are
n rormas oyer the
next three y2ars

Buiiding these large networks involves cannecting
large datacenres telephone exchanges i tnis

UK vtk Fomes ard ousinesses, effectvely

replacing the copper wires that were 2id 0 the first

~alf of tne 20th century. Surassic, Swish and

CGigaret are vertically mteqratec, as they botn owr:
zC have ithe erd
custormer relatonship as the inter-et serv ce

the fibre infraztructure and a

proviger or 152" Allnoinis owns fiore infrastr.ciure
and wil. onboard otrer 15Ps 10 the Alooinis netwerk

to sell connectivity to the ens customer

Throvgh Vorboss, we are building a networ

‘—r

Londorn to sunply business-to-busi
enterprse connecivity dm:(' to ous ness
custorners Vorbess has instalied over 500km of
fibre cotic cakles in Lonoon since 2020 and has
recently launched a single 10Gops oroduct to

ararket, recogrisirg that arrbiticus Longon
Susinesses will quickly ~equire more than the 1Gops
connectvity they've relied on to date.

"
ey DY N - I T -i 3
snce 2018 and we exoelt ths divisen o conirue

to become a larger gart ©F aur business over iime

d approximately Elorn of
cap.sal by 2025 to fulfi. is build

more cormMur tes in need of ulirafast oroadiband

The Group expaecis to soe
plans ana reach

Home building

Cur new home nuildirg busress, Elviz 15 a full
service houselu der, acquinng land, deveoping e
site, and subseguently seling the homes 1o
ndividua, buyers Theze sites iraude a Mk of open
rmarket and afforaable Pouses and strive to celiver
nigh guasity aspirat cnal homas. The cusiness s
growng fash with org.ected annuat turmaover of
E250m and

withirn the next 2-2 years.

&00 hiouses built per year forecasted
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Directors

The experienced Board of Directors for the Fern Group are responsible for
determining the strategy of the business and for accounting for the Company's
business activities to shareholders. They nave a set of complementary
commercial, energy sector-related and strategic skills.

Paul Latham . -0 5 200 b0

PaL! s Cnie® Exacutive of Fern and is raspons ble for the day-to-day ranning of the
business. He s alsc a rmanaging director of Ocopus nvestmerts Limited (O,
where he has worked since 2005 QI 5 a key suppler of resource and expertise
to Fern Pald's dual role ensures that th s relaticnsnip works effectively ara in the
best interestz of Fern's shareholders Paul has had va“ous gereral manacement

and nterral corsultrg roles ACIOSE & NUmber of seCiors amd orirgs with hurr

a wealth of Industry and pusiness exper ence

assocClate professor of swategy ard ar”ﬂp ereurship at _ordonr
ol He also anlds vanous non-executive dir orshi;:-s ana advisory
i growth and more mafure companmes. In his role as nor-executve
Cnarman he (s responsible for the effective operator of the Board, as well

as its governance. ke onngs to the Fern business independent commercial
experence gained from nis time in acadermia, prvate equity nvestrnent,

corsulung and varicus hands-on operzuonal roles.

Peter Bavlow o0 0 ssoove 0 aliny

Peter has cver 30 years experience in:nterrat onal Prancing of ‘rirastructure ard energy
As a senor executive for lntermnational Power, Peter was responsible for arrangirg over
$12bn of prasect and corporate furding, as well as banking refatonsh ps and treasary
actvities. He has spent over 20 years work' ng intermatanally for HSBEC, Bank of
Arnernca and Nomuara, finarcing acquisitions and greenfield proects ir the energy
and infrastructure sectors His combiraton of Board-le vet financing and energy
EXPENSNTe OYer NLIMEercus erergy sug-sectors, and his ali-round knowledge of
gk the sectors in winich Fern operates, adds significant value 1 the opearation of
the Board as well as its strategy forration ang depioyrmert

Tims Aethur o0 g ey

Tim 15 a charrered accouniant with more than 25 years’ internat' onal expedance

as a finance director of both puklic ard private comoanies. Initialy he workec

for Price Waterhouse in Brmingham ard Cricago. More recently he was Chief

Financial Officer of Lghtsocurce Renewable Energy Lta, a global leader in the

fundng, deveopment and long-term operation of solar photovoltaic projects.

Tim orings extensive financial and accountancy Rnowledge to the Board as
well as an undersiarding of dynamic techrology businesses gained from hrs
executive positicns,
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Principal risks
Management identify, asses
cated with the Group's

strategy. Risks arise from external sources, those

< and ma
siness ehjectives and 1 are descrbed beow,

rage risks :

actions we take 1o reducs

The principal risks that tne Grodp are axpesed o
along with the rﬁltgawg

~ o .o N4
the potertial impact of

ment of whether

wihich are inherant cormmeraal risks in the market, 1 the rsk We 2lso imciude our aszess
and frorm operational nsks contaned witrin the i othe 'kethood of the risk has increasec, decreased

systems and Drocesses em

business, Cverallr

ployed Wit the ioor remamed the same,
sk exposure is managed across

the Group through the diversifzaton of actvities,

poth by sector and geography.

Risk

Market risk:

The energy sectar s expenenanyg
sigrincant turbulence ane there €
3 risk that forecast levels of mcoms
are not achieved dues to changes in
whiclesale energy prices, ofi-taka
contracts or government subsidies
Due to tus wurbdlent environment,
the DOTF'V’]UE: for increased
INEErverion By 1he reguiaiorn is also

o

Cranges ir Governmert poucy
may resut In reduced Income
streams within tne greup due to
additicnat leves

Operationat risk:

Levels of energy produced may
e lower than anue pated dues to
suis-optimal weather conditinns
or performance 1ssues wiin
egLipment, whien may result
swmﬁc;r t umylarr‘ed cwﬂt.me,

Fmancml risk
Revenrues ‘f"O"W Gf"érﬂ_'/

from overseas s.tes are lower than
expectad aue to fiucivalons Iin

foreign exchnarge rates

Construction risk:

Corstrachor of tne 5 les takes

tonger or is miore costly than

antic’'pated due o rescurce
avallability or irgreased cost of
wormaterials

M:tlgatlons

Cor*-tracts are ertered into whicr fx theincome for a
partion of the energy genersted Sy our sites.
Long-term goverrmrent backed oftaxe agreements
N place, such as the Renewable Otl gation Cert®caton
("?wC jscheme | of our energy 1IMcore was
generated from 20O revenae
We ergays win the governmert anc the Cc= of Das and
Clectricty Markets ([OFGEM 1o contr bute to ar inaustry voice
with poicy makers who st future reguiatory requiremean:s.

Unpredictatinty of the weather s ritigated through
dwverssication of techrolog.es and location of sites,
Regular servic g ©F assets s underiaker (G ersure assets
are kept o goco conaiter and minim se the risk that
assets are uravaiable for a longer penod

ali porhon of the ‘-roki‘sz

~ £ -
cenved from

The ('rrmp ntErs Gres pr e Conracis w Lh cortractors
where approprate (o reduce exposure 1o noreasing costs

Change

b wae meres u was way s REERSY 4 YREE BhR ¥ ARERE Y ERRtadiiNR 204

4

Increased
(ﬂu»ﬁ to mareet
rstaky [ty

SR
o]

No change

N change
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Market risk:

Expected sales fromr customers
are \ower man ant C\mtcc-‘ due to
ncreases compettior from other
croviclers

A change r polcy by the
reguiators in favour of larger

Ppef’a ors could impact our ab ity
te deuver plarred devewpoment,

fe-:ucmg revenues and efficlencies

Ganed from 3 targer presene n a

Construction risk:
Consruchon of the network
takes ionger Oris more costy
than a’]:icpated due 1o rescurcs
availability or increased cost of
raw matena.s.

il

0

Operationai risk:

Netwaork service ‘s interrugted or
unreiiabie leading 1o potentiai loss
of customers and reputational
damage

hedy
Fi o

S

HE
FEAAR AN T
%°='¢‘(x$<t¥h° ‘»v»

rrchm at QQU\DW‘PH with long lead times.

Mitigations

SRS

a0k

Management ragularly reviews the comos
N target buld & eas to ensure plans do not confict with
other alternative network operatcrs.

Maragement engages proactively win the Office oF
Communications a 'wd the Government to ensure the

henefrs of smaller operators are well urderstood and its

interests are aporopriately represented

We are an actve carticipant in relevant mdustry bodies,
particularly those reprezenting aiternative network
operaters

The Crouap has conuacted win a cumber oF db w—rﬁm
suppliers (o recace the exsosure to any ore ndvid.,
entity Selecton of outsource pasiners s managed
througn a detailed :()i’OCUFPE”ﬂE?’H orocess with long term
visibiity of work allowing partners o plan francal and
pecple resources aycordmgly

W ere sLoniy char protw "MS are ﬁxp *Cle d for critcal
HEMS Our [E8ams g
ductand other rrater als on harwrj‘ ar:d adva

Quir n@tworks are Dult In g res.lent way with aiverse
route options should a fallure cccur in one route
Tnis, comrbinad witn an ability to identify ana resclve
connectivity issucs auickly, mimimises dowrtime of the
VOIS,

Fhen
A6 B
T

Tt
DL «,im‘mw !

valandscage

Change

PR

increased
{due to mare
cempetitcrs in

the markes]

4

increased {due
to increazing
cemard for
rESOUTCe I
the seltor as
slierrative
rietwork
provicers scale

balet)

|
|
|
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Risk

wnnrnnnnon e bt s & 8% nannnnanana o« okn whe o Do o oo

Market risk:

ingreasing infigtion andinterast
ratzs lead 1o a mia
affordabiry izsue, rezulting in a
arop in property valdes across al.
cectors of real estate, This may
impact our ab ity W recover a
toan in fuil through a refinance
or saie

wide

Counterparty risk:
Loars may be made to unsuitab.e
countarparties, rmoacting our
a[;\.\fy o orecovern Ine .oan k;
i fLl

s

Mltlgatlons

. Heaithcare/Home Bullding Divisions *

Tke eams pro- actu.ﬁlf marage our costion i the
mar<etplace and are prepared o aniorce whgre neaded f
3 loan maoves into defaclt

QOur .oans are made at corservative oan-to-vaiue (LT}
ratios with @ maxirurs LTy of 70%.

cured againct chysical underlyirg security,
over the progperty o cther asseis of the

X o cally or afrstcharge

WIS AR ckar‘r e of recovery snoud enfo
aclion oo necdas

Thorough aue d igence < performed orior towri ng
2ans, inclucing prosetty or land valustions and cread
checks cone on borrowers

Yynere i2ans are written for assets under ConsrucIon,

m lestories and covenants are put n place 1o ensure

zre corrplete pnor to reteasing furiher drawdowrs,

Mltagat:ons

Hlarur\ ng consents on umﬁDuOlupﬁd lard are optimised to

Market risk (Healthcare and .
Home Building): rnaximise revenaes and reduce the risk of iosses on saie
A fall i houge onces could
impact cur ability 1o gerer
expected reverue from the sale
of apartments in our fe*'remerr
vilages and hcuses bulr by Etma
Construction risk (Healthcare o The Group erters “xec prce contracts whom lelelgeTel =N
and Home Building)' 10 rediuce BXDCLUre 10 INCTeasing maserial costs
Corstruction takes longe- or = The Group only waorks with reomaulﬂ 3rd paties with a
1z more costly than articipates Strorg track recors oF aelvering s ilar projecis
due to resource avalabiin
Igle r'ased cost of raw ma
Health and Safety rlsk « ke G' TUp Mamntains ronust polic es an d oroceddres
(Healthcare): refating 1o the provisior of med ca, services We review this
The preventon of injury or rowgh CoNcuCting reguiar irtemas nsnections, and are
avoicable loss of Lfe of cur 3lsC sub ect o exterrzl rsoechians by regu. a‘f' ; bodies.
.

pauents s of uumost mpcrtarce

and s crtical to Mainainmg a

good reputatior. dtigauor as

a resuit of medical malpractice
could res

renLtato

N damage to

The Grodp has irsurance po; noea
fnanciallotses cue e meaica malp

Change

g e S

4

SCONOIN:C
climate)

Change

+

increased cae
o unsable
SCoOnOMIc
chimate)
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Risk

BB @B U YRR KX B H L6 ¢ BRI

Mitigations Change

ks e e o

Market risk:

An ncrease in base rates may
rcrease costs or delt faciliies,
moacing the Growp's atibiy o
serv o debtas it fals due

Liquidity risk:

Poor management of cast within
the Group could impact the
Groups abilty to meet obil.gatiors
as theoy fa'll due

Health and Safety risk:

The safery of cur errployees
and those emowoved through
contracts are oOF paramount
migortance. Thare € a nsk tha
accidents in the workplace could
result in senicus inury or deatn

ot

» Wrere fioaung rafe debt is in place (where interest vares
In ine with an underlying berchmark rate, the Group %»
enters Into hedg ng arrangements o fix a portion of these
paymerts throughout the term of the ‘aclity. Hedging
ar-angements are outlined in Note 21 of the financal
statements,

Increasea
fdue to rise n
irterest rates)

+ Adetaled cask flow forecas: is prepared and reviewed
by manager~ent on a morthly basis, incorperating cash
avalzbility and cash requirements across the Group. Gnoat

3t a quarterly hasis this 1s shared wth the Board,

« The Group menitors bank covenants or an ongong basis e
to cnsure cortinued adherence o covenarts Where . W
covenants can't be met, forecasts are updates ‘orthe vO Cnange
iower cash availapte as a resuit of the restnction

« The Group has a flexble finance faclty which
drawr, on at short riotice to meet immediaie bus riess
needs.

Can oo

« We have developed robust health and safety policies in
corrpiarce witn 15045001 across tre Group 0 ensurs
the wel. being of cur staff

« Health and safety training 1s orov-ded to oLr staff and
contractoss on aregu.ar basis

Increased

Cyber Security risk:

A attack onour IT systerms and
data coLld tead to disruntion

of our operations and loss of
cyscmer data Loss or mrisuse

of data may result In regatational

« We employ a Chief information Secur'ty Gfficer {7CIS07
whois responsitle for data security across the Group and
reports quarterly 1o the Board. J—
« The CISC works closely with our pusinesses o ensure e
adeauate standards of security and informaton
management are ret,
o Fach of cur nusnesszes that hod custemer data has therr
own dedicated rescurce for IT and securty

No change

The strategic report was aparoved by the Board of Cirectors on 16 Decemuper 2022 arc signed onits bakalf by

PS Latham
Director
16 December 2022
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Corporate governance

Sectiop LFE (4] statement

The Board cons'der that they heve adhered (c the
requirements of secton 172 of the Companies Act
2006 (ine "Act”

way that would be maost likely o promote tre

1, and have, in Qoo fath, actedi

success of the Grouo for the bereht of its members
as a whale fhav ng regard to ail stareroldears and

matters zet cut in sec
in the decisions tak

tor 1720060 f) of the Act)
i during the year ended

'n

Ir the performance o s duty 10 cromote -

¥

success of the Groug, the Board nas fegard toa
rumber of matters, mc.ur;mg the tikely

ceofary d

Rl
o
b4
i
D
o)
o
T
_)

eCisions 17 the long térrn, ang
listens to the viewws of tre Groug's key stakenouders

to bueld trust and ensure it fully undersiands n

m

poterual impacts of the decsions it rmakes e

D

Boarrd fuifis the

s duties partly by celegaticn

O

commiitees and the ocards of suks diany

xmder:akm{‘a who operata wihin @ cornoraie

governance framework acronss the Groun

Al every Board meeting a review of hieadh and
cafety across the group, financ al ane cperancnal

performance, as w

iy

o
[

a5 legal and reguiatory
compliance, is undertaken Tre Board also review
other areas over the course of the fin:

includ ng the

ancial year

Croun's busimass stratagqy, key nsks,
takenolder-relatec matters, divers ty ana molusivity,
env ronrmertal matiers, Corpﬂrate responsiility, and

governance, compliance and legal nraters.

Principal decisions
We define principal decisions takar by the Board as

those decis-ons that are of a sirategic nawre and
that are signifoznt to any of ou” key stakehclper

Jroups Thz Boarc cons'der that e Sollowing are
examplzs of princpal d

ended 30 Jure 2022

SIS 1L Mane n e yasr

= Evgluating and deciding to micve ahead with
nereasing wind operatiors, which s part
n August 2021 the

our renawables division, :

roup acgul o sCate, ready o construct
G acguirec a large scale, ready to construct

o's st umg/ > continue 1o

cdeve on renewah e erergy sites which provide
predictable, long-term revenue strearms. The

Board considerea the opportunity and how it
aligned weth Gur ob Jecuves to make & positive
cortribLton i he <o

Tre Group dec
divisi

ided to expand into our rewest

on, fouse bulding 1 May 2022 the Group

acadvec Envia hormes, g fuil-service property

aes

oper, provading ervces frorm ine desigr,

to the engineenng and then Fnat construct an

0 ensare the delvery of Gualty workmansins

owvers fyng tne Grous's asset base and ertarng
into e new sectar Nas been well thought

our with long term growth in rmund Tre Board
astessad the siateqic oopdriunities within the
sector before decid' ng to move areas with s
acguis.tion, corsidernng how this wodd impact
existing busnesses within fhe divisicn and how
it aligned with the Groun's strateg ¢ objectives to
colver long-term value ano credictabie growth
for our shareho:ders

eview g and aeciding 1o move abead with
ncreasing biomass operations which s pac of

cur renewsbles dovizion I October 2021 me

Group acgaire & large scale, waste-to-energy

corstruction site in S5cotend Ths depleymert

algrs wite the Group's \;trafegy to continue to

divers™®y the Group. aeve p recewatile energ

stes whon provde credictable, iong-term
revenue sirests, and provide reslience against
whigiesaie oricing changes n tne U erergy
mrarket The Boarg
ardno g
make a positve contibubon o the COMIMT NIty

and ervirgnarren:

G considered the ceportuly

mmiutity and envirgriment,
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Corporate governance

+ Tne board dec'ded o change audit firms via a
tender process for the year ended 30 Jure 2622,
Tne Group had charged significantly since tre
previous auditors were aponointed and therefore

we were unable to reliably assess the value for

money we received. Three firrms urderwent

the tender process ara Ernst & Young LLP were
selected because ©
urderstanding of our busne
methcdnlogy and value for money.

fIneir strong commercal
ss, effcent aLdt

Business strategy
Our bus ness strategy s sct cul o
the Strategic Report. Managerman

rpages L1 to 14 of

T prEpAres a
deta.led Group budget which is approved by the
Board orr an anndal Lasis and forms the Dasis for
tne Group's resource plarning and depiayment
decsions. in making decis.ors concerning the
business plan, the Board has regard first and
rategic focus, but aizo w other
ragiters such as the nterests of its vancus

foremaost 1o it st

stakehclders and t-e iong-term impact of its
acticns on the Group's future and reputation

Shareholders

Shareholder relat-ons and generating shareboelder
value s a key considergtion wher the Bosrd 1S
mak rg strateqic decisions The prime medium by
which the Group commurnicates with shareholders
iz through the annual report and finarcial
statements, whicr aim to provide shareholders with
a full urderstanding of the Group's activities and 1ts
results This informaton is publishec on our wensite

at www.ferntrading.com.

Employees
Tae Grodp's empioyees are fundamenta
s The Directors futi

[to the
overa.l success of the busines

eir duty to emotoyees by entrusting Gversight to
sibswiary Boards which the Chief Exacutve of the
Group also sits on

Tre directors of the subs
manage the day 1o day d
ergagernent and commu

d\a'y undertakings
SN Mmaking,
rizalions with employees

and ersure that necple are treated ‘fairly and are
vaiued witn respect to pay. penefit and conditons.

We fully reatise that our emaoloyees wish to be

=

informed and corsulted on matiers affecung th
work and 1o be irvolved in groblem-solving
affecting ther own areas of interest and
responsibility The Group is firmly comm:tted t¢ 4
palicy of gocd communication at all levels ard we
gim o estaklisk a climate which constently

Aow of iInformsticn ard
trefings

encourages the open

ideas. Presertly this includes monthly team

at 2 loca. level and tnhe pubacauor of monthly key

performanca ind cator: coverng outpul, Ooerating
(o]

ﬂ

sts, and nealth and satety.

Tre heaun and safety of cur employees in the
workglzce is a conunua: focus for e Group, given
s brozd operatioral busingss The Direciors review
FHeath & Safety Heporting at each board rreeting to
ensure aoprogprate polc s and procedures are in
cace to protect the neaith and safety of owr
employees and contracior: Where there are
otential deficiercies or issues. theze are followed
Jdp and resolved or 2 nmely bazis, witn the Board

navirg oversigat of the actons taken

Tre Greup cutscurces acuvities and managerment
of certain operationa. activ tes o external suepliers.
Where activities are outsourced the Board ensures
tnat they are manaqged by regutable suppliers who
mae! all the relevant industry and regutatery
commitments as well as treatirig empioyees fairly
Expectec standards are documertea in ail service
contracts and adnerence to these are continualy
mon iored by Board throughk their service

agreemenrt with Ocioous Investments Limitea

Suppliers and customers

The Group acts in a fair manner with alt supphers
and custarners and seeks 10 maintain strong
forships with therr This s ach eved

neqotated throwgh a fair and

business rela
by all coniracts being
transparent tender process whick includes

3ssessing the 'mpact on the leng-term obyect vas of

e

2
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the Group. We review cur payment processing

ainst contracts every six maonths to ensure

rs are paid promptly and this mformation for
=

company is avanable on the www.gov.uk

The Group ensures it acts fal
all custorrers across all divisio

i andin a transparent

manner o ng and

services, and actvely engages to reeolve any c's puteg

or defaults The Board closely monitors custom

rnetncs and engages with the managermeant team

&)

ungerstend the ssues f busingss performarce does

not meet customers expectations

The Board considers Gatopas investrments Limited

to be a key busmeass partnor and seppher with

responsiolity for the provision of operations
overs ght, financial administration and comoany

csecretanal services,

Commu nity and environment
The provis

o ard operation of tusiaicaple
ifraztructure s at the centre of the Group's
strategic goals, Trrough 1S ousiness activities the
Group sesks to make a pos tive contriputionr to the
commiunily, ervironment and economy. Our
rencwabie erergy busincss is aelping the UK mee

its renewable cnergy targets, our private hasgials

have supporied tne NES througrout the Covid-

sanderr-c by orovicing treetment ‘or non-Covid-19
’\‘H_, patiernts thai otnerwise coua nol nave been
carned out, and our Ebre network wll give people
I A3 COMMILUNITEs aCCess o hich-speed

hroadbard

Business conduct
As Directors curintenion s 1o behave responsinly,
SrsUnag maracement operate the ous:mess with

rtegrity and in accodance witn fhe Fugn standards

of conduct ans governance excected of 2 b

SLICTE A5 CUrs O intention through oLr usin

strategy oubined on pages L1 o 14 s 1o operate in
sectors and work with ot er businiessas inat share

S vaiues
Business ethics and governance
The Board s~
aclivities of the G

esporsible for ercuncg that the
roun and s vanous basineszes are

conducted in cormpliance wih the faw ana
appuacable governance and regulatory regimes, and

in acghererce witn prevailing best practice for e

relevart ndusry Ths ncludes reviewmng irerral

controls, ensanny tnat there is an appropriate

ha.ance of <xilis ang expenance SentEd On T
Board, a~d ernsur g trat the finandal statemeants
give atrue

cup Further cet

arid far view o the state o affars of the

tall can be four‘m In the statemenrt

-::f direciors resocrsibii ues on page 29, Intre

oy 30 June 2027 no areas of concern nave tesn

fagged in this regard

Employee, human rights, social and community
issues, environment policy and anti-corruption
and bribery matters

The Board's policy or eriployee
soC1al ana CommMunity 1IS5LEs, enviFonTient o

Tuiane rofts,

o OHCY
and a~t-corrustion and brbery matters is discussed
oage 29 The Board

corporate cutture that 15 nased

in the Cireciars’ Report on
aciively sromates a

on etnica, vaiues and peiavours
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Review of fnenclal statements

The purpose of this report s Lo provide additional the share prae and rmay not reflect changes i the

a
explanatory information on the firgncial staternents @ full market value o assets or businesses owned by

I rmeasLring cur performance. the Anarcial v the Grous.
measures st we uge nciude those that have been : i L
tOA numDer of acguisitions were mada during the
derved fram our reported results r order to : )
' Ioyear, including rine operation:a. reserve power sites,

elirnmiaw factors that dswort year-on-year

I g waste to erergy site urider corstrucucn, a
compansens Trnese are consdered non GAAP

N " Poconstruction ready wind farm in Australa and
nancizl measures
e seventee~ solar ro(wtop sites under construchan

A recong lation of t e to the fmaﬁaat res.dts can P Snorty after the year end, in July 2022, we sola
oe found in note 28 f the notes to the fin i Da-urgton Point a iarge solar site in Austrahia
siaements, P ‘ .
i To support continuea expansion, we nad buill up
The Francial staterments show $35618 3t COSE 85 50" 1 Casn reserves at year end of E25%m wrich included
they do nat refect the futdre vaiue that we expect o ¢ atarae cash inflow of £977 from placng exemal
erive from these Gusiresses To that extenrt Porefinarang in Darington Point pnor to sale
ounting performance may o For matenaly from
(restated) Movement
2022 2021
£°000 E'OOO ’000 %
711,830 425 302 28 528 &7%
194 916 104 036 R7%
47 604 lZZ 663) 70,767 31C0%
| nd reg) bf‘f‘K fne of DrovisIons 360,901 385 512
256,415 172 478
Net debt 793,169 699,440

Net assers 2,219,448 1,887,842 33607 18%

f425m; wrich was gredomunantly drven by a 84%
ircrezse in revenue within our erergy divis.on This

Financial performance

Overall, the Grouc nas reported a profit before tax of
£476m for the year ended 20 June 2022, which s a
E70 3momprovemeant on the prior year (2021
£22 7 loss restated). Overall E317 DA increased by
87% 1o £.95m 2021 £104m restated), which iz
primarily due 1o increased energy generation as well

growth is two *0id, increased energy generator
fromn having owned/ooerated one of cur hiorrass
plarts for tre fuli year ang a iarge solar plant in
Austrasa reaching commissioning; ang a significant
ingcrease N average energy grices over the year due
to the msmatch between supply and demand,
exacerhaed by the ongaing confi'ct in Ukraine.

as increased energy prces.

Revenue increased by E287m to £712m (2020

‘Tarmngs before interest, tax, deprec ation and amornsaticn
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Revenue growih was strongest in our enargy

division but we also saw a marked mprovement 1In
reveriue from

our retirenen: This part of

from the

viiages.
ness hias rebounded wel
lockdowns required oy the Cowid-19 panderic

rasponse. selling 45 urets 'n the year (ar increase of

our bus

%
T
joy
7
—
)]
0
~
o

cenrrnraeaaen

inan book over the year as Casn was rmade avalabe

Ow ine

anc ng and capal rased by new snare

us
iy imo tre f

fire hroadband sector over

fodr years which wil recuire further captal

where there are a nurher of corstruction and

52%) and an ircreasing in revenae of £75T (o ioexpenditure over tne rext 3-5 years, INCreasing our

£20.4r (20210 £12 /) I diversification acros clors,

Revenue lrom our lending division saw a drop of i Of the casn helo 3t year end, £21%m was »eld in
5% to £42m (2021 £57m) due 1o a smaker average  § our energy home building and hire subsidiares,

ok

o grow othe parfs of the busnes:

Operating expenses for the ;/ear were i (ine weth

. Iororts afte
Cur expectations, with: tne ingrea<e prmarly driven
by Increased operating costsn our fibre divison as
it maz expanded Reﬁﬁ.ar‘:czmg exiernal cebt o :

secdre improved terms over the past twio years has bawar
contributed w0 a decrease narterest costs of £2.5m

to £33.6m (20721 L35 1m).

Included in the results this year 15 2 Drofit of £

28T :
recegrised on the sale of two wind “arms in “inland

B ~ CONveni
ard a reziisaton of 21 6m of deferred consideration

NZ™MCs O
o selar sies sold 1In previous years :
LCANNGL recon

Financial position

Continued sharenclder ine vesimert has

seen net assets grow to £2,219m (2021 £1,888m :
restated) In the year ended 30 Jure 2022, we I a3 solar paneis) s

wsued 120m shares (2021 1507 for a foal
consideration of £204rn 2021 22 :

comparatve year nambers include £1.593m of

conside atior realing to group restructunng

MNet ¢

rave incre

of £RO8 {2021

aseq by £145m, reflec

UrrEnT assets £RG3m rastated)

nNg the reducton in

exzernal imarcrg and ar increase 1 work 10 progress ceed the va

witmir tre fore and house oulding dwis.cns Cur loan sclar parels
DOGK I oroderty lending has decreased Ly 5% (G

£26im f’)F 21 £356m), and at 30 June 2022

 eguvalents as at 30 June 2027 were

1 E172m;. Ca

zh gererated from

generaran pus ng
Cusinesses) reflacts e

nfrastruciure proiecis

e readily avarlatle

as

in excess of the company's ner assears, reflect ng
ther reliane future
DN e res that o
the haance sheet 30 the ac
o the celarnce of the addition

a0

ValIe WHICH SO
w2d o deliver
xcass of the value of fixed assefs

Doprofits, not the cost of simaly

for tne sites we ac

under way, requiting cash o

for stage paymearts due e

royear end

54 e (2021 £567m restateq),

grificart number on the

ne arises on e acquistion of some

a
businesses, Acquired businesses, for examiple
renewanle enargy sites. ofte~ have a mrarket vaiue

hoome srearty ACCoUnthg
on.y idantifac

& asse’s gre

ouUnts

ises the future profts that
Tre acditional value

themsslves (such

ecognised az goodwil

Put simply, tre market value of tre energy

Ty cperationa.
value of ‘uture exsecied

i buy ng targible assets
3 or wind turtines We pay

Sulire,

which mMay

(o]
b3

frecognised

;s over ine life of the
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Lector performance

Energy P(2021: £196m restated), partially driven by increased
S eCONoMmIC activh‘y and ginbal derand increased 1 osite costs where £120m was mcurred at our
tnrodghout the year, so oo did winolesale energy ! bormass sites and £93m at our reserve power siles,

tre prices for raw materials have increased, on
average, by 69% due "¢ ar inc:rease nthe supply

prices, driven by movemeants in commaodity prces.,
which resuded ir the overall ncrease ir revenue

earmed acrass our energy stes. These markat 1ocosts Tre combines cost of sales for the reserve
factors have resulted in anincrease n revenue of i power ar‘.d biomass sites nereased by £110m to
84% w© £59~,‘m {2 21 £32emi POE2LI7m (2021 107 It should be noted that the

. e it e revenue generated by the bicmass and reserve
Correspondirgly, EBITDA also increazed by 112X o < 165 N t ;
I p . . ! power sites increased o 52m dunng the year to
£266m (2021 £125m restated) reflacting the ; POWErstes it e gihey

~ ) PO E3S3am (2021 E161my
sign ficant norease in energy revende Overall wtal

operatng costz increasea by £1300r 1o £327m :
FYz2022 FYz2021 FY2022 FY2021
Production Production External External
(MWh} (MWh) Ava;lablllty Avallabltlty
Biomass 1,050,038 553 84 GA R3.2%
Landf .| Gas 240,226 258,026 92.9% 97 6%
Reserve Power 403,355 141,086 94.2% G2.0%
Solar 554,858 517112 97.7% 96 0%

wind 851,214 881,241 90.5% 92 1%

Total 3,099,690 2,682,019
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Healthcare

Heszlthcare operatons conmbued F46m

(202% £E42m) to Group reverues for the year
Aecting the mpact of increased reverue in
ngersrd Sales of agartmeres at the retirement

vitlages

Fave rebounded well from the lockdowns
reqwre—d oy the Cowid-29 parderic respornse

ng 41 units in the year an increase of 52% from
1‘ ard rncressing revenue by £E7.6m to £20 2m

(SU 21 £12 7i)

Lending

Revenue fror lending decreased oy f.24m o £42m
[=1

CES7m prmariy due to 2 smalt
locan ook for 2022 wh.on resulted in & decreased
revenue strezm for the year Tre totai ioan book
reduced by 6% 15 £365im at the year enc (2021
E388m) Tris reduction i« the loan
casn o oe available for oppoartun
sactors within the Group

book eraties
€5 across other

incledimg acquisitiors and

an The makea-co of the ‘oan book Fas
cigrty where we have issued 2 h'gher
r‘umber of srailer ioars witnin the residertial
sector, as well as more larger (cans in tre

development sector and tre cormmernial seg

EBITRA far the le
of £8 7m from a proht of nearly Elrr

endirg division decreased o a ss

i the grior

year This moverneni reflects a provision of £25m: in
the loan Goox agamst loars to rescrve power s:tes
and a provison aqainst a healthcare loan of £14m
Inihe yeas oo June 2022 £29mM was pr’QVlGPd

Fganst 0ans versus £21m in the prior yea
Fibre
3 g relst vely ne < fipre busire

startirg

wodivizior, all T

are inthe ouwitd phase ard aro « el Tolo!

Lstornens o ther networks. 3y 20 Sune 2022, tre

@“

v sior nad Bud passed over 180,000 homes We

anticipate the owla stage o cont nue “or a furirer

3-5years as we expand e fore metwsocs

ca ohy‘smai asset on paiarce sheef the

cging a fbre network s capial iriensive

seesiraremanran

divicion aisorncurs large operating cxpensas as the
busnesses scale ther ooerations and develep
market presence. Overall the divsion reporied an
EBITDA loss of £55 4™ (2020 EZ23 L iossy, which
151N L ne with expectations and reflects fne

developrnertsl slage of tre division
assets will be
ed on the baance sneel al cost wh.oh

As we kuid traese networks out, the
recogrs
carnct include future vaiue whicn 1s expected (o be
gererataa as the assets have besn imtarnaly
generated This iz different to the thare price
the fu value ﬂypect“d o

asLels 18 |c.Jd:ﬂd

where
be generaed from the

Home building
Elvia Homes was aeauiret in May 2022 and has
therefore had limiies rmpact on ihe Anancai
performar
forecast to deldver £ 78 revenue and L& 5m
EBITDA for the year ended 20 Jura 2023 Recuits

from the Ar<t quanier of 2023 irdicate tne business

aurng the year The busiress

s broadly parforving in line with expectations

Funding and liquidity
15 "0 secure org-térm inanc ng at

conzervauve levels fromr manstream banks o

Our strateqy

enfance returns frorn cur renewatie cnergy
pusincsses, At year end we rad £1.044m of
extermal praject Grnancinrg with £441m of
freadreorr aval.anie

Trz enables us o acquire cusinesses that the
mrarker considers 1o have staple characranstics su
55 prediciable cost hase, revenue streames,

governmeni incantives

or prover techraiogy and as
ut leverage waald

encicers. It also a

lows Ls
ST S5E5 am‘ managiﬂg

—

value over the

stur and shdr”*‘u der

lan ng tery

Apcroxrmately 80% of cur interest payabe is fixed
and tnergfore we are nct significa-tly exgosed to
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the current interest rate volatity We corbinually P Deployment into filre continues o rell out inine
review financing arrangernants 1o ensure that they with expactations and the Group has now passed
are compettive ang coumised for tne needs of the | more than 150,000 fomes by our fibre networks
busrass. To ensure cash is managed it an aglie Sales activity ir ur heathcare division remains
manner, we ma ntain a flexicle finance facility strong, witn nearly £0% of annual sales budgst
which can ce drawn down or repaid to meet aiready compieted or reserved across all sites 2s &t

imrnedate nus.ress receds. the end of Septermber

Announced within the autumn statemen: as part of :

tae 2023 Finance B, the UK Governrrent will
enact g 45% windfall wevy "Electrcty Generator

Looking ahead
The Growp nas rebounded weld from the effects of
the Covd-19 pandemic and has outperformed

Levy” or "EGLT on whoiesale energy market ‘
revenles in excess of £/5/MWh, Tnis 5 expected to

expectations. Whilst the current ecoromic cuilock
one of challenge and urceriamrty, we anucpate

o)

aogly to tae Group fror 2 January 2322 1o 31
pMarch 2028 Tre exact legisiaion wil be pubiizhed

minimal imgact on our resulls due o the

predictanle revenua streams and cost Dase, and
essentiai nature of oLur actvites. Couplac with the irn mid-December 20722, but based cr: the initial
divers-fication we nave Duit Jp across the bugirese, reiease an irrpact 3arayss has beor performed

as at 30 Secternber 2022 We eslirmaie the impact
tobea Grop invaluation of zpproximately F45m
for the sites affected. which cantributed to a

i 2 Do decrease in the share preoe to 2770p in

Decemper 2022,

we are postoned sirengly for these wrbulent

We continue 0 pay particular attenucrn o the twir
challenges of nsing interest rates and sarging

inflaticn — botn in terms o° lending and porifolio
maragement. These trends impact al, areas of the | We expect to gererate strong operalirg returns
Group's cusiness and are lkely to reman for the D from odr estatlished divis ons for the coming years, i

foresesable fature, 0 we remain cisciplined incur 1 n adaitior: to the anticipatea cutflows tor our :
ssets The heasncare and :

irvestment agproach, cortinuirg to mornitor the I ocorsiruction phase a .
situation carefully and taking a prudert agproach o fibre divisiors are well Ino their buid prase in ine :
any current and emerging risks with our long-term stra\egy and we anticipate !
e me X . . . Postrong returas over the next five to seven years |
We are postive about the contirued cpportLnity : ) !
for growth and continae (© believe that the Hpon Maturiy J
business 1s posinoned well o take advantage of 5
futare growih oprortunit’es across its Core business 3
areas. Energy, lending and nouse bu\'ldirwg :
operations are wel estanlisned in the market and

continue © make excellert progress with robust

performances in tre new haancial year. 'n line with | PS Latham

our plarned strategy, since the year era we sold & DIrestor 3
large sclar farm in Australia for a small orofit, witn i 16 Decerrper 2022 ;

croceads being redeployed iito new opportunities

RN
isimugidy
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2022

The directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2022

For a summary of the Group's results, refer to tre

Croup firance review on page 23

The dircctors have rolrecommenaed payment of
a dividend (2021 ENR)

o Compary who were 'n cffice

the date ©F signing the

P55 Laltham
K3 Willey
PG Barlow

T Arthur lappointec 1 July 2022)

Refer to note 23 1nthe Notes to ke frgacial
statements

[ B U A RN

Refer to the Stratcg ¢ Report on page 8.

Refer to the section 172 staternent on page z1

The Grouo's ijecuv‘os ard poucies on financial nsk
nanagernent roading nfcrmatcon onthe
exposure of C roup e credit rsks, hquidity risks

and rmar<et risks are st oul in note 21 to the

=

finarcial staterments. The Groun's orincipal nsks are
.

set oul In the strategic repo t on

=
o
&

o
D
|
o

Az permetied by section £14¢ (11 of tre Companies
Act ZSC%.J, the girettors nave electad 1o diszloe
rmation recures o be in the dreciors report

edu.e 7 o ine Large and Me 1-gized

O
<
(%3]
Al
o 1

Companies and Groups (Accounts ard er@rtg,'

Regulations 2008 in the stra

eI report

Tre Board recognises tnat & coroorate culture

d on sound etmicas values and bienavicurs 1 ar
asset he Group endeavours to concuct it
Cusiness with iregry, in ar ethical, pro
sicle manner, treating cur ermployees,
ers, suppaers and pariners with courtesy

Applicat:cns for employrment by disatied persons
are gven full a2 far consideration for all

vacances Naving regacd 1o the « garocuiar aptitudes

and atinhes, Skodid a persor tocome d satied
wolLe N the Group's employmant, ayery e“orr g

made toretan them n emoloyrrent, giving

aiternative tra.ning as Necessary
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We fully realise that our employees w.sh o te in accordance with the recormendations of The UK

irformed and consused or matfers affecting their i Corporate Governance Code, the Board has i
work anc to be invowed in proklem-solvirg sffecting onsidered the arrgngements in clace 1o encourage ‘
their own aeas of inwerest and responsibiliny 1 octaff of the Group or manager of the Groun 1o raise |

. P oconcerns, in confidence, w thin thelr grganisatio
Tre Group i firmly commritted to & poiicy of good B ' 9
Poaooun possibie Impropreties in matters of ﬁﬂarrctal
cormrmuricaton at all levels and we aim ¢ estastisn 3 ; .

" ) ‘ ‘ ! oreporting or ciner matters 1t1s satsfied that adeguate
a climate whick constantly enccurages the open : )

1 arrargements are 10 place o aliow an independent
Eow of information ard 'deas. Presertiy tnis :
. Donvestigation, and foliow-on action whes nelrisary,

irctudes monthly tearn briefings at 2 local level ana 3

P lo take place within the organisation
the pLbrcation o moathly key performance P ‘ °
irchcatars covenng output, operating costs and

healin and salety
We are corrmittes (o acting ethically and wih

en Tointegnty in sl our business dealings ang

relaticnshios and 1o miperrerting and erforcing

Tre GroJdp has in clace ar agreement with Ociopus i
. R o effective systems and coriros to ensure modern
fnvestments Limited o nrovide services w the

stavery 1s not taking olace anywhere in our own

Groun covenng operatioral cvers

administrater, comaany secretanal and company ]
1wt cur ctbligattons under tne Mocern Siavery Act
ccourting. :

i 2015 We expect the same high stardards rom all
St e lem e e ievex s e 1oof our contractors, supnliers ana other business
’ N partners A part GF our Conracting processes, we

ght,
basiness or in any of our supply chans, consistent

The Board adoped a formal environmentat, sacial
and corporate governance ('LSGY policy on

30 September 2020, Tne Group recognizes the
veed to conduct s business. N a rmannas trat s

expect cur supplers o compl with the Moaern
Slavery Act 2015,

s e

Lo " ERN

resoconzible to the environment, wherever possible ‘ :
The crrectors are responsie for preparng tha ;
i

Arnual Report and the finaric al statements 0
accordance wih applicable law and regulaton

As a low energy User, the Company has elected not
to disclose data on its cnerg/ and carbon Jsage.
Fern Trading Lim:=ted 5 the anly Cornoany ir the

Comgsany taw requires the drectors 1o orepare
Group that meets the repcrting critena and sary th 0 orep

firancial statements for eack Fnanciat year Under
that law tne directors have prepared the Group and i
Comecany financial staterrente i accordance w th
United Kingdom Cenerally Accepted Accourting
Fractice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
compnsing FRS 102 "Trhe Finarncial Reportng
Stancard applicable in the UK and Republic of
reland”. and aoplicabte law), Under company law
the directors miust not approve the financial

therefore NG informatior is provided for the Group
as a whole

Tne Growp's nas an Anti-Brnbery Policy which
introduced robust procedures 1o ensure full
comrpiiance with tre Bribery Act 2010 and o ersure
irat tre highest standards of professionat ethucai

onduct are maintained

statements unless they are satisfied that trey give a
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true and fa r view of tre state of affairs of the Group
ad Company and of the profit o
and Company for that pe! oo In preparing

r loss of the G'O;JD

finarcial statarments, tne directors are reguired to:!

« select zuitable accounting policics ana then agply

them consistentiy,

» state whether applicatbie United King
Accouning Star dards, comprising Fre5 102
been followed, subject 1o ary material departures

dizclosed and exp.ained in the financia

staterments,

¢« mMmake judgements and accodnung esumartes that

are reasoranie and nrucent; and

» prapare e financial statements on the gong

Concern 2ass un.ess itis inaporopnae to
oresume that the Group and Tompany w .l

continwe 17 business

The directors gre also responsthie for sateguarding

the assets of t-e (}roup ar Company and honce

cetecticn of frauc and other [Hizte ular:ties
4

The directors are respons e for keeping adegLate
accounting recoras that are sufficient 1o show ard
explain e Group and CTompany's ransacticrs and
disctoce with reazonabie accuracy at any ume the

finzraal position of the Group and Comaoany ana
enable therm to ensure that the financial statements

comply wih the Comrpanes Act 2006

onsbie for the mainenance

mparty's website Logsiation
o gf)vmrw g tne pregarat
*firanc ai statemenis may differ

frorn legis.aticn ot”er;uﬂs Cuons,

The direcrors are resp
and rtegrit e Co
I the Ur‘uef‘ <ingd

0

and disseminaton o

w1

rended 30 June 2022

: d by the Articies of Aszociaton, the
directors have the cereft of ar indemnity which =
orov s0n as

s Act 2006

throughout the last

@ cua.‘:yim_‘. third-party inde~rity p
ceqned by
The \f‘derrwiy was in force

secton 234 of the Comganie

firanc al year and 15 currently in force,

I the case of eacn diregtor 11 office at the aate the

Directars Feport s approved,

« w2 far as the grector = aware, there |1s N0 relevant

audit nformaton of whicn the Groop and

Company's auc.tors are unaware, and

« ey have taken all the Tthey ought

to have aken 25 a arecior in order 1o make
tremiseves gware of any relevant audt

informanen ane to esiabesh tat tne Grous ard

Coraoany € a.wgitors are aware of tnat nformarnion.

Tens oo
N accordance whn ne o]
anes Act 2006

sefrmaton s given and shouid be interprete
rovisions of sector 418 cf

crnst & Young LLP Paving Been ape
~ave maicatad trer wilingreass 1o be reappo ntea

for another term ang will be propesed for re-

'

aoContmMent N accordance with section 485 of the

Companie: Act 2006

w the Board of

The Zirectors repo was a
b 122 and sgred or

o
Dereciors or 16 Decerrber 21

[ o]
=
v
<
4
O
—

Deraf by

PS Latham
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Croinion

We have audited the financial statemerts of Fern We believe that the audit evidence we have

Trading iritec {'the 2arert Company’) and its chtaned s sufficient and aporopriae o provide a
subsidiaries [the ‘Group‘) for the year ended 30

Jure 2022 which comprise the Grouo Stateent of

basis for our Gpinon
Comprenensive ircome, the Group and Parent Conclusions relating o going concem
Cornpany Balance Shee:, the Group Statement of
Cazh Flows, the Group ard Parent Siatement of
Changes in Eguity ard the reaed notes 1 to 29,
rcluding a surrrrany of signiftcant accourting
pouces. Tne financia. reporting framework that haz

N auditing the Inencia. staliements, we nave
conclioed that
concern nasis of accounting in the prepa-ation of

e directors’ use of ing going

the finzncial stararments 1s appropnaie

been appled i thel” preparaton is apslicable aw Sased on ne work we have perfermed, we have

cen applbed it ihelr preparalon s apoucable av . .

and Urited Kinador AccoLntrg Standaras not denthed ary materal urcerainties relating to
H (WIRNILE Ungdor e 2 S ds -

IrCUcing FPS 102 “Tre Financ:al Reporting condtons that, ndvicusily or collectively,
b i " 14 LI ot i NG )
Standarc ap'ein the UK an o May Cast Q rificact doubt on the Group and Paen:
standars apolcas.cIn Ne U arn o) Comomn it 16 cort e a6 & song concer
Irelanc” (Um ea Kingdom Gererally Accepied “ompany’s b4 as Ing cone

Accoart ng Practce! for a per‘od cf twelve menths frorm when the
VLA i iy o <

zuthorised for1ssue.

Ir 2ur epinion, tne financiat statements: ‘ ] o
Qur respo-zibtlities and the responsiblities of

the directars with respact t

+ cive a true ard fai- view of tne Group's and of the > Qoing concern
Parent Corrmpary's affaivs gs at 30 June 2022 ard

of the Group's profit for the year then erdec,

are asscribed in the relevant secticrs of this
report However, because not al future events or

nditicns can adict ris sieeent is Gl a
« have been oroperly orepares in accordance with conditio be pradicted, tris staement 1s ol a

= + e L g i -
Uniteg Ringdom Cenera 11/ Acceptec Accounting quarantee as to the Group's ablity to continue as &

irg concern.
Fracfice, and dQITg Lonee

« nave been prepared in accordarce weth the Other information

irements of the C anies Act 2006 ; ; i i
requirements of the Companies Act 200 The other irformation comprises the informaton

included in the annual report, other than the
qnancial statements and our auditor's report
‘hereon The directors are responsible for the other

Basis for opinion

We corducted our awdit In accordance with
Irternationa. Standards on Auditing (LK) {ISAs (UKY
and apollca’sée law. Qur responsibilites under those
cards are further described i the Auditor’s
onsibilities for the awot of the Anancial

information contaired within the arnual report.

Cur opinior on the financia: stalements does not

ol

cover the other information and, excep: 1o the

. ) extert otherwise explicitly stated inthsr rt, we
staternents section of our report. We are sriert olherwise explicily stated in tos repo t’. v
do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereor:

independeant of the Group in accordance witn the
ethical requirements that are reievant to our audit of
the financial statemerts i the UK, includ ng the
FRC's Fthical Standard, and we have fulfilled cur

QOur responsibility is o read the ciner informaton
and, in dong so, consicer wnether the other

other ethical responsibiities in accordance witn information is materally inconsistent with the

these requirements, finencial statements cr our knowledge cbtained in

LA




Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

the course of tne gudit ©r Otherwise appears to be
materialy misstatec If we identify such matenal
‘nconsistencies or apparent matenal misstaternants,
we ara regured to determine whether this gives rse

to a material misstaternent in the financat

statements therrsewes. If bazao o the waork we

Hava performed, we conclude that trere s a

maternal misstaterent of tnc other informaticn, we
are recuired o report that fact

We have noth ng © report in this regard
Cpinions on other malters prescribed

it}; the Companies &t 20086

In our op nion, based on the work undertaken

the course of te audiv

« the irformanon givers n tre Strategic report and
Y g

the Directors’ report o the financia year for
waicrh the financial siaterments are prepared s

consistent with “he financial statemerts and

g:C report and Directors report have

peen prepared in accoroance with aop.cab.e

ulrerments

fMatters on which we are reguired (o
raport by oxception

in the light of the krowledge anc understancing o
the Group and the Parent Company and its

environment obtaired :n the cours or’t e audit,
we have not identified matena, misstatermens n

the Strategic report or Direciors report.
We have nothing o report ir respec: of tre

followarg matters norelation to which the

Compamies Act 2006 reguires Us to r2port o yoL ¥,

oL oRin o

« adequate accowrntng recoerds nave not £e
or returns aasquate for our audit have not been

receves from cranches not visited by os; o7

« the Parent Comipary Gnancal statements are not

T oagreemert w ih the accounting records and

reb g
CiuLr™s, Or

.
]

» certair aisclosures of Directors’ remrunerarion

specifiea by law are nct ~made, or

formatior and
it

« we rave not received al the i

explanations we require for Gur 3ua

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more {uily In the Directors

responsibichies staement set out of 29 and
30 the Direct

of the firancial vatemen:s and f
that they g
nterngl contre: <

T 0aces
s are responsible for the pre
or being satisfed
far view. and for sucr

parat.c

ive a true ang
the Drectors determing s

necessary o enatle tre preparation of finarc al

statements trat are free fromom

2rial

Tisstatermeant

ether due o raud o eror

In crepanng tne firancial statements, the Drrectors
are responsible far assessing the Group's and tre

Farert Corrpany's abilty © o

rinue 4% & gomng

concern, disZ'osng. as acolicakle, matters relzred
+l
t

10 2oing concerr and usng the going corcearr
nass Gf aCCoanirg uness t e Directars ether
ntend to lcwidae the Group or the Parent
Company oY Lo CRase Loeralicns, or have na
realstic aternalve but (o do so
Hudhitor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements

Jr ckjecnves are to obtain reascnat.e assurance
acout whether the finangcal stater-ents as 3 whole
ara free from materizl misstaternent, whether dgue
‘s report
that 1Inciudes our opinion Reasonable assurance is

to fraud or eror and 1o issue an auditor

a nigh level of assurance, but s not a guara-tee that

ordance witn SAS (LK)

esstgiement wihen it

an g gt corducted 1n 30
will always detec & rmater '3'
exists Migstaterrents car arlse from fraud or error
and are consideres rdviddany o nithe
garcgate, ey coud reasconatly be exoecied 1o

E
rf uenco the econornic deqisions O LSers axer on

the hasis of thes
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Explanation as to what extent the
audit was considored capabile of
detacting irregularities, including
frau

frregulantes, inciuding frauc, are insiances of nor-
compitance with laws and regulations. We dezign
procedures in ire witn our responsibilities, outlined
ahove, 1o detect irreguiarities, including fraud The
risk of not defecting a material misstaterment due to
fraud 3 higher tnsr trie rizsk of not
restit ng from error, as fraud may invalve ceunerate

cetecting one

Or 8xaMu'e,

concealment oy f

forgery or ntentional
rorsrepresentanans, o througn colluson, The

extent (o which our proceduares are capab.e of
detectrg rreguiar sies, mcluang fraud < detaced
belo

preventicn anc detection of fraud rests with bain

v However, tne prnimary résponsic:lity for tre

trose charged with goverrarice of the entiy anc
rnanagen ent

Our aoproach was as follows

« We chtamned an wrnderstanding of the legal ard
regllatory frameworks that are applicable to tne
Group and determired that the most sigrificant

are those that relate 1o reporting frarmewor< (FRS

102 and the Companies Act 2006;

+ We undersoad how Ferr Trading Lirmited s
complytng with those frameworks by making
enquines of management, those charged with
governance and those responsinle for egal
and comoliance procedures as to any fraud nisk
framewao ik within the entity, including whetnear

a formal fraud risk assessment i completed. We

corrcborated our enguires trrough review of the

following docurnentation or performance of the
following procedures,

» obiaiming ar understanding of entity-level
controts and considernng the influence of the

contrel environment;

= Obtaining an understanaing of policies and
procedures in place regarding comipliance
with laws and requlations, including now
compliarce with sucn policies is moniicred
and erforced, obtaining an undesstanding of
managerient's process for -dentifying and
responding to fraud risks, includirg programs
and controls estavlished 10 acdress nsks
idertifed, or otnerwise prevent, deter and
detect fraud, and how serior maragemrent
moritors those programs and cortrols;

« review Of Koard rmeeting minutes n the per-od

and up to dae of signing.

« We astessed the suscept biuty of the Groug's
Frizrca statements o material misstaternent,
inciud ng how fraud m.ght occur oy odng a
discassicn within the audit tearmn woich included

= dentification of reated partes,

« understanding the Group's butiness, the

account level including discussions with
managemert to gain an urderstanding of
those areas of the financial statements which
were susceptitle fo fraud, as identified by
management; and

« consdered the controls that the Group has
established to address risks identfied by
the entity or that otherw se seek to prevent,
deter or detect fraud including gaining an
unciersianding of the entity levei controls and
policies that the Group applies.

= Based on trig understanoing we designed cur
audit procadures to identify non-compliancs
with such laws and reguiations, Cur procedures
involved testing of journai entries through
journsl analytics tools, with focus on manual

e
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

journals, large or unusual transactions, or journals

meeting cur defined risk criteria based on our

understanding of the business, tested accounting

estimates for evidence of management bias;
enquiring of members of senicr management
and those charged with governance regarding
their knowledge of any non-compliance

or potential non-compliance with laws and
regulations that could affect the financial
statements; and inspecting correspondence,
if any. with the relevant licensing or requlatory
authorities.

A further description of cur responsibilities for the
audit of the financiat statements is located on the

Financial Reporting Council's website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our auditor's report.

This report is made solely to the Company’s
members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state

1

to the company's members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor's report and
for no other purpese. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company
and the company’'s members as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

[/ &% f&.i.._p

Michael Kidd (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory
Auditor

Belfast

20 December 2022
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4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022

Group profit and loss account for the vear ended 30 June 2022

(restated)
2022 2021
. N . F . U - N N o ‘\j()\"(_! N Y “wuzlooo E: OOU o
'wr;rnov;;\ VA U ‘mwm,wwnm(’,l,.m,.,a,..,y..wm711'830 w e Og -
Cost of de\ {410,883} L2?1 27'7}
Gross proht e 306,9?7 204025
Admiziistzative expenses (258,251} (231.844)
Operating prohtl(loss) . S S 4 m42,696 (2/’819} “
Cther income 1 3,550 9,454
Ircorre frem oiner fixed asset irvestmerts 5,249 445

Skare of operatng proft injont verturo - 1,755
Prafit or disposat of subsidianes and jontventure 8 29,533 28,568
Other nterest recewvable and simiar roome 3] 130 9497

Irecvest payable and similar charges & (33,554} 136.067)
Prohtl(loss) before taxat:on 47,604 {22,663}
& on proftfiloss) / (15 294) (8,349)

Proﬁtl(loss) forthe f:nancmlyear N e o 31,3_10 _ V _ {31 012:'

Attributable to Fern 37,932 (27.005)
Minority interest , o (6 622) (4 uf‘ )
31,310 (<1 012)

All resulis relate 1o continuing act vities Note 28 detaiis the prior penod adiastimants
Group statemant of comprehensive income for the vear endad 30 June 2022

{restated)
2022 2021

£000 E'000
mse LB

[T SN

Proﬁtl{ioss) or the ﬁnancual year

Other comprehensive income

Movements in cash fiow hedges 77,985 44983
18,561 {333)
Other comprehensive income for the year . 96546 w41!4 650 -

FOreEgr\ exchange aalm"\lossl o rr:trans;iatéor OF

Total comprehensive income for the year 127,856 13 638
Attributable to

+ Owners of the parent 134,478 17645
ingi {6.622) (4007

« Non-contr
127,856 13 638
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4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022 |
Group balance sheet as at 30 June 2022
{restated) g
2021 :
MNote . E'OOQ I
me&,,éssé;“\,,,m,,,h e e s S A :
Intanaitle assers 8 557,708 576,739 i
Tangibie assets g 1,893,430 1,581,682 ‘
nvestments 10 35,452 11,000 ;
I S 2486590 2159421
Cu,-re.-.;;g;&s ..... e e T T
Srocks iz 184,479 94711 g
Debtors lrclacding C138m 2021 £16 L) 13 623,161 508002 l
due after more than ¢ yoar) H
Cashrat bankard in 11 256,415 172 478 g
- 1,064,055 865191
Creditors;:-arﬁ.-a;n-rits fallin§ c-l-ué\-ui-thin oney;;r 14 (256,152) -(_20-2.‘-(-]5(;)
Netcurrentassets . s07903% 66312 :
i’otai;sﬁets less currént liabilities - - ‘ 7 - 3,294,493 - 283?563 j
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 19 7 (992,425) (903339) ‘ f
Provisions for liabilities 1 (s26200 41372
Net assets - - - 2210488 1887842 f
Capital and reserves E
Catied up share capital 18 161,662 149676 %
Share prars Lm aoooant 364,882 173118 '
Merger res 1,635,569 1440257
Cash flow nede reserve 63,006 (14 979 )
(2,770) 146,049 %

2,222,349 1884121
(2,900 2721
2,219,348 1887847

statemenis on o2gas 35 o 92 were aporoved by the Zoard of drecterss on
[ &

PS Latham
Drrector
Registerex number 12501636
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Company balance sheet as 8t 30 June 2022

2022 2021 :

| Note €000 €000

;:xed P OV ot BT . IR i
IPyestrnante iC 2,539,878 2,115,366 ;
Cﬁ}';ent as“séts o o - -
Uebtars 13 . 39,888 50.283 :
Cash at ban< and i hand it 5 422 1523 :
Credltors amounts fall;ng due-;;;lhm one year o MMWWMIIQ) (&4,9&4) !
Netcurrentassets S 4861 osom
TDtBI assets iess current Ilahllltles S 2. 585,839 2 145 548
Net assets S ‘ o "2.585,839 214)34@ =
Capital and reserves g
Called up snare cania, 15 161,662 149,676 i
Snare premium account 364,882 173118 ’
Merger reserve 1,986,457 1,751,145 i
Proft ard ioss account 72,838 31 409 ’
Total shareholders’ funds I 2,585,839 2145348
Tre Company has e.ected o take the exemetion under section 408 of the Companies Act 2206 not to
present the Corrpary proht and loss account The oroft for the ﬁrﬂcm 13 pencd dealt with in the fingnc at
statements of the Compary wes £236,742,000 (2077 loss of E157.504 0300)
These financal staterments on pages 35 to 22 were approved by the Board cf directors on 16 Dacernber 2022
and are signed on their berall oy

PS Latham
Director
Registered rumber 12601636

H
i
H
H
H
i
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Group statemeant of changes in squity for the vear ended 20 June 2022

Called up Share Merger Cashflow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capitat account reserve account holders’ interest {restated)
({restated) (restated) funds
(restated)
£'000 £'000 E'D00 £000 £'000 £'00 £'000 £000

138435 - 1635568 (635857 (42,185} 1668982 2570 1678552

- - - 3875 13,825 17703 - 17,703

2027 (f;zgtar.:::ﬂ 138435 - 1635.569 159,962) 127.356] 1686685 3570 1696,255
- - - - 124005 127,005) 14,007) (32,012

e of cas il - - . 44,5654 - 44583 - 44983
353 rectateal

Foregn exoaras e
fior of - - - - (333 (333 - (333}

2 e

51k

L [ SRS R

I or - - - 44 954 {233 44650 ~ 44650
- - 44,983 {27,238, 17645 <007 12638

Nor-conteol an
Starisg or - - - - 1,831 1.831 {1,842} (11}
5 ot ralion

or o rrargar - - 195,317) - 195,312 - - -
Shares izs goz durrg 7 2211 1 X) |
e e @ 11685 173118 - - - 184,803 - 184,803
(444, - - - [6,259) [6.847) - 6.843)
149,676 173,118 1440257 {14,979 136,049 1,884,121 3721 1887842
Balance as at
1 July 2021 (restated) 149,676 173,118 1,440,257 {14,979) 136,049 1884221 3,721 1,887,842
Profit for the
financial year - - - - 37,932 37,932 {6,622) 31,310
Changes in market
value of cash flow - - - 77,985 - 77,985 - 77.985

hedges

Foreign exchange
loss on retranslation - — - - 18,561 18,561 - 18,561
of subsidiaries




4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 20 JUNE 2022

Called up Share Merger Cashflow Profit Total Non~ Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders’ interest
funds
£'000 E'000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 E'000 E'000
Qther
comprehensive _ _ _ _
income/{expense)} for 77,985 18,561 96,546 96,546
the year
Total comprehensive
income/{expense) for -_ - - 77,985 58,493 134,478 (6,622) 127,856
the year
Utilisation of merger - _ 195,312 _ {195,312) _ _ _
reserve
Sharesissued during 8 44936 191,764 - - - 203,750 - 203,750
the year 3
Balance as at
30 June 2022 E 161,662 364,882 1,635,569 63,006 {2,770) 2,222,349 (2,901) 2,219,448

Note 26 details the prior pericd adjustments

Company siztement of changes in equily for the vear ended 30 June 2022

Called Share Merger Profit Total
up share pramium reserves and loss sharcholders’
capital account account funds
£000 ) E'D(}(Jw N E£'000 E£'000 £'000
Balance at‘wﬁ:\?orporatlon o - o - i
Loss for the financial year O f157504)wm{1w5?562)
Utilisation of merger reserve - - (195,212} 195,312 -
%-t-e;-l_-c-é:mprehensive income L o (195:3121 - 37808 o ~157504 )
Shares issued during the year 150,120 173118 1886457 - 2,309,695
Shares cancelled during the year 444) ~ - {6,299) (6,843]
Balance as at 30 June 2021 T Tlasere | izsas 1791145 31,409 2145348
Profit for the financial year - - - 2%6,741 236,741
Utilisation of merger reserve - - 195,312 {195,312} B
Total comprehensive income I —‘ 195,312 41,429 W236.74£ .
Shares issued during the year 11,986 191,764 - - 203,750
Shares cancelled during the year - - -

Balance as at 30 June 2022 161,662 364,882 1,986,457 72,838 2,585,839
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Grou statement of cash flows {or the vear ended 30 Juns 2022

{restatod)
Mot 2022 2021

£000

R Nl

e e e 8 TR e e, i bpbhpe

Cash ﬂows from operatmg acim es
Freft/iloss) for tne financial year attributabile 1o tne owrers of tre parent 37,932 (27005

Adjusitments for:

fax on oroft/loss) 7 16,294 5 349
inferest receivabie and similar sircorne £ (130) (997)
nterest payable sng other similar charoes 6 33,554 36,063
Profit on disposal of subsicianes and Joint venture g (29,532) (28,568)
ncome from jaint venture - {1755}
income from fixed asset investmenis {5,249) (449}
Arnortsatist and rrpa roest of intang:ole hxed assets & 45,762 27704
Deprecation of tanagible fixed assets 9 101,802 84697
Mo cash start costs 3,050 8,875
Movernents on derivalives ana Toreigri excnange {18,044) (19.788)
ncrease N stock {19,829) (5,701
(Ircreasel/decrzase v debtors 31,022 249,574
ncreaselidecrease) i crediors {173,956) 6,871
Naon-cortrolirg inerests 1Y (6,622) 4,007}
Tax received/paid) 25 853 ( 7’51)
Net cash generated from operating activities T mmer a0
Cash flows from investing activities T ‘

Purchase of sucsidiary undertakings ine: of casn acquired! {52,377) (221,987
Sale of subsidiary andertakings ana eint vensre 101,778 34,503
Purchase of r1angitle asses (322,446) 110.457)
2urchase of Imtangibie assets (7.222) 1875)
Durchase of unistad nvestroents (124,203) (29,617}
Sale of unlsted rvestments 10 105,000 20,133
nerest recaived & 130 997
Incoma f QM QN venre - 1,077
Nel cash used in investing activmes 7 7 . - o {299 340) . waSOo 2/6)“‘
Cash flows from financing activities - 7 S - 7
Proceeds frorr anancing 201,719 -
Interest pard {(32,319) [35,552)
Repayments of inancing {32,013) (212,678)
Froceeds from share issue 15 203,750 184,355
(,mbe at-on of shares 18 - (6,399)
Net cash generated--I‘"r-t-:"l;'.lmf;ﬁa;;:|ng";ctl\r|tles S ”341,137 . (70 268)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equlvalents - 83,694 7 o (34, 577j ‘
Cash and cask e tne begirning of tha year 11 172,478 206,688
cxoharge gans on cash and cash equivaients o wu243M o o 367 7

=

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

MNote 26 deziis the prior percc ad:ustments
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Statement of accounting policies

Company information

Fern Trading Lirmiuted {the Comipany'} is a prvate cormpany imited by shares and incorporated on 14 May
2020 The company & domiciled in England, the United Kingdom and registered under company number
12601636 Tne address of the registared office is at 6th Fioor, 33 Helborn, London, England, EC1IN 2HT.

Statement of compllance
The Group and individual ﬁnaﬂcal ctatements of Fern Trading Lirmited have beer prepared i compliarce
with Un-tcd Wrgdom Accountng Slercards, inciuding Financial keporing Standard 102, " The Financia
Reporting Standard apphcable N the Uried Kingdom and the Recublc of relard {FRS 1027 and the

Comp nies Act 200

Basis of preparation of financial statements

rie qnancal starements have neen pregared On & going concern Dasis, under tne nisioncal cost conwvent:or,
as modified oy the recogriter of certan financial assets a~d lianilit es measured at falr value, and in
accardance witn the Comparies Act 2008 and apolicable accounung standards in the nted Kingdom. The

crircloa accounting paticies, which have beer apoied cons \Ste”tly throughout the year, are st out beiow

Tne consol gated fnancia. statements irclude the results of all sunsiciares owned by Ferr Trading Limied
as listed i riote 29 of the annual finarc al staterrerts Certain companes of these subsidiares, whoh are
asted nrote 29 kave taken the exernption from an aadit for the year ended 30 June 2022 permitted by
section 479A of Carnpanies Act 2006, In orcer to allow these subsidianes 1o a<e the audit exemplon, the
parent company ras given a swatutory guarantee, in iine wwth secuon 479C of Comparies Act 2006, of all

tne cutstending net Hatrhites as at 30 June 2022

Going concarn

The Group's and the Company's business activities, togetner w th the factors likew to affectits future
developrmen:, parformance ard positon are set out the Strategic Report on cages 4 w 14 The fnancal
posit.an of the Group, its cask flows, liguidty positon and borrowirg fzalives are described ir the firancial
review on pages 23 to 27 The principa. nsks of the Groun are set out on pages 16 to 19,

Tre Directors cerform an annual goirg concern review that corsiders the Group's ability to mael s
financial obligatons as they fall cue, for a period of at least twelve maonibs a‘ter the date tnat the financial
siaterments have been sigred.

Cue to the cnallengng market condinons management have performed ar assessment to determing
whether there sre any material uncertainties arising that could cast significant doubt on the ability of the
Group to contnue as a going concerr, NG sighificant 'ssues have been noted and as a consequeance, the
directors behave that the Group 2 well placed tc manage .ts business rnisks success ully despie the current

: ,\&a&&m&«
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in reacring this conclusion the Direcicrs have reviewan the financ.al impect of the uncertanty on the
Group's balance sheet, profit anc loss and

ash flows w th specific considerayon given to tne following

A rave e <t was performed on the base case forecast 1o ascertan what scenanos would resdt in

ity positicn. The test showed even in an unixely scenano of a s grificant reductior
of revenue of c, the Group is akle 1o sustam its current operatlor;ai [SOTRE ar~d neat gt Hao wes 3s they fall

The Group has a number of financing facilites that contain covenants reguinng the Group to mairtain

specified inancial raucs and comply with certa n other inancial covenants These finarcal covenants are

testeq at least cuarterly, and, at tre date of this repart, tac Group s i complance with all s financigl

covenants Stress tests on reazonably plaus.bie scenancs such as a signifeant reduction in E21T DA of 84%
over time fnave teen used to astess the covenan: reaurernents for the at least tha next tweve morths anc

all covenants have beean forecast 1o be rine 55 test scenarc, nthe go g concern perod
AT IE Sure 2022, the Group had avalsble cash of £250m and headroor availasie of £E441m ircluding a
«o!vw’} credic faclivy ©f E210mn. Debt of £&8m 1< due o mature in ies thar ore year, with the rernainae”

S

of £956m payaiie 1n maore than aone year, The Groups faclities, «enpayment dates and undrawr amounts are

set out In Note 16 Loars and Borrowings

Key accounting juegement and estimates nave teen made with corsideration gven to the current
cconcmre outlcok Key estimates include loan recoverability. vaualion of waork in orogress,
decommiss:oning provisions, impairment of goodw'il and investmen:s, ousiness corbnations and hedge
accountng Deta

are S8T OUT On pages 500 51

Hased ¢r the above assessment of curren: ecornormic conditicn: and te meact on the Group's francial
oosition, liguidity and ﬁnaﬂcia‘. covenants, the directors have concluded thal ine Greup and Company 1as
acequate resources o continue In oparational existenca for the next 12 montts Thus, they cortinue to

adopt the going concern basis of cuntine in oreganng tne annual inancal staternents,

Exemptions for gualifyving entitiss under FRE 162
4

W

i

FHS 102 allows a gualify.ng ertity certain disclosure exermpbions, supject to certain condinsns, wiuch have
ceen complied with including notfication of, and no on ection 1o, the use of exermptions by the Compary's
srnarefriolders,

The Compary has taken advantage of the folcw.ng exerptions

b from grepanng a statemen of cash fows, on the pasis tmal itz a gualfying erto lidated
stanernens ¢F casn flows, nciuced in tnese nancia, statements, included the Company's cast flows

3 nstrLmert ciscicaures, requires under FRS 102 parsgraonrs 15 39 to 12 434 and
mn

a
paracraphs 12.28 10 12 2%, as the inforranucn s proviaed in the corso dated firarclal staem
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Bansis of consolidation

e conscldated Franaal staterments include the resdlts of Ferr Tracing Limited andg all ts suisid ary
underizkings made Up o the same account ng date Allintra-grouc balances, ransactons, income and
expenses are eliminated in fuli on consolidaron The results of subsidiary urdertakngs acgured o disposed
of during the pericd are noiuded or excluded from the income staterment from the effective gate o
acquison or d'sposal,

Al undertakings over whicn the Group exercises confrol, neing the power 1 govern the Ainancial and

operat ng policies so as © oota n henefits frorm tneir activities, are consohgatec a3 subsidiary undertaxings

Where a subsidiary has different accountng polcies to the Group, agjustiments are made to those

subsiciary francial staternerts to apply the Group's accounting pol cies when prepanng the consolidatea
P

Any subsidiary underakings or associates soid or acguired curng the year are included Lp to, or frorm. the

dates of change of cortrol or charge of sicrificant influer co respectively

Whiere the Croup has writien a §>u+. ophon aver skares neld by a non-controling interest, the Group
derecogrises tha non-controlling irterest and msiead recognisec contingent aeferred cons.deranon sability
withir otrer payabies for the astrated amaount Lkaly to be gaid 1o the non-conroli ng interest on exercisc
of tiose optians The residual amount, reprasanting the differe-ce tetween any consderation pa d/payakie

and the non-conirolling intersst's share of net assets, is recogrized as gocdwll Moverenis | th%

estirrates Jability aftes intal recognition are recogrised as goocwill

Foreign currency

i. Functional and presentation currency
The Group finare al statements are preserited in pound sterling and rounded o thousands

The Company's functicna. and presentation currency s pound sterling and roundet to thousands.

ii. Transactions and balances
Forengn currency ransactions are ransiated irto the furctiona: currency using the spot ex mgc rates at
the dates of the trarsachions At each pericd end foregn curency menetary items are translated using the
closing rate. Non-monetary items meazured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the
dare of the ransact-on ang non-monetary items measured at fair value are measured using the exchange
rate when fair value was determinad roraign exchange gans and losses resuliing from the setflemert of
tranisactons and from the ranslation at pericd-end exchange rates of monetary assets and lianiities
denorinated in foreigr currencies are recogrised in the profit and ioss account,

All foreign exchange gains and losses are prese~ted :n tne profit and lezs account within ‘admimn strative
expenses

ili. Translation

The trad.nig results of Group undertakings are translated into pourds stering at the average exchange rates
for the year The assets and liagiites of overses LJI'“dQ’ akings, nciuding goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on acquisiion, are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the year-end. Exchange adjustments
arnsing ‘rom the retrarslation of opening net irvestments and from the translation of the profs or losses

at average rates are recognised ir ‘Other comprehansive income’ and ailocated to non-controlling interes

as appropriate

Eha ety
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Turnover

The Group aperates a number of classes of business Reverus s denved oy the ollowing

i
« Encrgy {
Turnover from the sale of electncty generated by solar farms. winc genergting asseds, reserve DOwer ]

plants anc Biomass and landfil s 15 recogrised on an accruals basis it the perod m whichit £

generated Revenue from long-ierm governmert becked offtake agreements, sLeh as the Renewable

Obligation CertiScation "ROCT scheme are accrued n the period i whech trelates to. Turmover from the
. .

saie of fertibser by omass anc landhii busineises s recognised on DNys Cal aispatch,

Turnover is recagnised wher the s gnificart risks and rewards of cwnershin of retirenenrt properties have
paszed 1o the buyer (or tegal completion), the amount of revenue can oe recagnoed redaty, and itis

proban.e thad the econcmic bene’ins assocated wih the frarzacton will flow to the entty Turr.over

.
!
e recognsed gt the far vaue of the considerat o received for healthcare se =3 prov Jed in the rorma !
:
course of busiress, ana is shown net o VAT Turmover is recognises based on the date tne service s !

arcviged

+ Lending
Turnover represers arrangement fees snainerest on loans proviced o cuslomers, net of ary value

added tax Loar interest 1s recogniced on an aoorual basis in lre wit~ contraciual rerns of the loan

are spread over the life of the ioan o whick tney reiate
¥

o Fibre

Turniover 1s "ecogrised at tre fair value of the corsideraion received for internet connecuvity and re.ated
3 v

IT service

sroviged in the norma course o cara s showr nelcf VAT Turmover 5 recegnised

nased or the dale the serv.ce 5 provicded

« Housz suilding
Tornover is recognized on legal completon of the sale of property. ianc and commiercal spaces Turmaover
from housing

3

Orogoriion of

5 recognised by referonce to the value of waor< comoleted as a

the woal conract value.

Employves benefits

The Grous pravides @ rarge of bensfis 1o emolovess, ncluding arnaal sonus arrangements, caid holiday
arrangervierts ang defined contnbulion pens on glars

i. Short-term benefits
SAort- term Lenehts including holicay gay 370 Siner smilar non-maenaiary beneghits, are recogrised as an
ey

expense in the genco o wrich re sen

A defired contribution olan s 3 cens an plan ander waich e Group pays fixed contnbut-ons NG .

v
m
]
Qi
W

E!
ate entity Once he contr butiors have been ga o tne Grodp was ro furtaer caymrent ooligations

@]

accruals N tre palance sreet The assets of the plan are helo separately from e Group nindecenaantly

it. Defined contribution pension plan |
an " 3 i

The contr but ons are recagn sed as an exgense when tmey are dug, AMoU~Ls nol Cald are srowr Ir |
; \

c N \

admiristered funds
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iii. Share~-based payments
Cash-settled share-tased paymerts are measurad at fair valle at the balance sheet date. The Group
recodnises a dabiity at the nalance sheet date based cn these fair values. taking intc account the estimated

numear of uniits that wiil aily vast and the current proportior of tne vestng cerod.
Cranges in the value of thic liabil ty are recognised n tre 1imcome statement

ine Group nas no equity-seftlec arrangements.

Finanoe costs

F.nance costs are charged ¢ the proft and loss account over the term of the debt ysing the effective
interest mened so thatl the amount chiarged 1€ gt a constart rate on the carryng amodnt. (ssue Costs are
iritialy recognised as a reduction :n the proc s of the associated caotal instrument and released to the
profit and loss account over the term of the d bf

Current angd deferrad tax ;

Tax 5 recognised In the staterment of Income and retainec earmngs, except that a change atriputabe 16 an
m of ircome ard expense recogrised &3 othef comprerensive incormae or to an tem recognisea directly

i eqmt‘y is also recognised in other comprenensive income or directy In eguity respechvely.

Tne carrent income tax cnarge is calcuated on the basis of tax rates ard laws that have teen enzcied or

ubsantively enacted oy the balance sheet date in the countries where the Comparny operates ana

QEI‘TG'St%S income

Ceferred baiances are recognised in respect oF sl timirg d-Ferences trnat have onginaed but not reversed
Dy the Salance sheet date, except that :

« The recogn on of deferred tax assets is imdea 1o the extent that tic probable that they will be recovered 5

against the reversal of deferred tax abiies or otaer future taxable profits, ang

« Any de‘er-ed tax Dalances are reversed If ard when all conditions for retamning associated tax allowances
nave beer met

Defer-ed tax balarces are not recognised in respect of permanent differences except 11 respect of busiress
ombinations, when deferred tax is recognised on the differerces petween the farr values: of assets acguired i
and the future tax deductions avaiabie for them and the differences between the far vawes of lisbilities

cgaired and the amrcunt that wii be azsessed for tax Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and iaws
trat have been eracled or substantively enacted by the balance sheet dats

Business combinations and goodwill
Bus:ness combinations are accounied for by aopying the purchase metned E

Tre cost of a business combination is the fair vaiue of the considerator given, lizbilities incurred or
assumed and the eguity instraments issued plus the costs girectly attnburable to the tusiness combinationt

Wheare control 1s ach:eved in stages the costis the congde ation at the date of each transaction,

On acauisitbn of a business, fair values are attnibuted to the identifiable assets, lishilines and contingent
lablit:es uriess

goocwill N here the fair value of cortngent liaoilities cannot be reliably measured they are disclosed
on the same bass as cther contingent liatiities

the farr value cannot be measurec reliably, ‘'n which case the value s incorporated as

e
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Goodwill rec ad represents the excass of the fir value and directly atinbutabe costs of the

ogr
cons:deration over the fair values to the Group's inten

DUFCr ase

estin tre dentifan’s nel aesets, lianlives and
contnigent lablities acguirec.
Cn azguisition, geodwill is aliocated to casr-generating units (CGU'S| tnat are expeciad to banefit fror

the cambination

Zoodwill 1s amertised aver s cxpected use’ul hfe woick s determined based on tre estimated
the assets acguires Where the Groun is unab.e to maxe a reliable estimae of us

amortised over a penod not excencing ten years Goodwill s reviewed and assessed
ncicators on an annual pasis and ary Impairment is charged w tre proit and «0sa.

Tangible fxed assels

Tangible fixed azseis are stated 2

=

cost less depreciation. Gepreciat on s nroviced at rates calcuia

off tne cost of fixed as=ets,
commerces from e date an

are not geprac.ated. The estinated dseful lives are a< follows:

‘ »mg ar.d hl lc‘w‘gs

the course of construcoon are stawd at cost

n
avalab.e {or Jse.

Where factors, such as technc.ogical agvancement or changes in rarke: pnce, indicate that red

ats prougnlinto cervce Land and astes in the course of const

Lifesoarl of

5)
%
!
o
X
q
&
2
2

sidua, value, over therr exsected Lseful lives Deprecatbrw

a
or useful sfe have changea. the residuzal value, useful wfe ar cepreciation rate are amenced prosp-@ct Vel 1o

refiect the new circurmstancas. The assets are reviewed “or mparment “ ire above factors indicate that the

caryl™g amount may be mipared

Gains and loss=s on d'sposais are determined oy comparng the proceeds with the carrying arrount and are

reccgn sed within profit or (o2s

mmﬁgébi& assety

Inrangiole assats are stated at cost iess accumulated arrortsation and accw

/\’Y‘-Cr’i\ ation s caloniat

F
to, thesr resicguas values aver (e esihimaled Lse

luded in adminisirative expensas

Deve oprrent -ights re.ate to plarning consert 1o bald a solar farrm and a wnd farm acguired on

e deprecialie arrount of re

rrulated impairment losses

acquis o
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Where factors, such as changes in market pree, indicate that residua: value or useful life have changed, the
residual value. useful life o amartsancn rate are amended proscectively to refiect the new circumstances.

ssets are reviewed forimeairment if the abo ctors indicate that the carrying armount may

Leages

At inception tae Group assesses agrearrents that transfer the right o uge assets The assessment considers

whether the arramgement is, or cantains, a leaze based on the substance of ‘rhe arrangernert and whether
the lease should be classified as ether a finance 2as2 or an operafirg lease
Leases of astets that tran subsgiantially a. the risks and rewards ircdenita. to ownership are classified as

[=]
finance eases. Finance £as5es are capital’'sed at the commercament of the lease at the fair value of the

)]

leazed asset and gegreciated over tne srhcrier of the esse term and the estimated useful ife of the ass
Assets are aszessed ‘or imea rment a7 each reporing date.

Leases that do not transer all the risks and rewards of ownership are classifed az cperatng leaseas.
Payme:m urder ogerating iea are chargeao to the profit and 1oss account or a stra:ght-ling bass over the
period of the lease

Investments

i

The Cornpany holds mvestments in a subsidiary at cost fess accurmulated rmparrent losses, i an
IMEaTment @35 15 subsequanly reversed, the carmying amount of the investment 15 increasce to the revised
estimate of .ts recoverable amount, put only 10 the extert that trhe revized carrying armnount does not exceed
tme carrying amount that would have been determired had 10 mpairment loss teen recagrised in pricr

peniocs Areversal of arimpairment loss < recognised 'n the profit and 1oss account

Lash

Cash includes cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand. Restricted cash represents cash for which
the Group does not have immediaie anc direct access or for whch regu.atory o legal reguirements resinct
e use of the cash

aw materials, soare parts and consurmables are valued at the lower of cost and net realisacle value Where
necessary, a provision = made for obsolete, slow-maoving ang defeciive stock. Cost s determined on e
, first-out (FIFO) method.

Fuel stocks (MBM and utter) are valuec on an average cost basis over one 1o two rmonths and provision for
unusaple litter 1s reviewoed rmonthly and applied to off-site stoc

~

Fuel stock of straw Fas heen valued at the hustorical cost per woane of straw A provision for uncsable straw
is identfied on ar indwvidual stack basic and is reviewed monthly Stocks are used on a firstin, first out
{"FIFC") basis by age of straw.

Stocks of ash at Fibrophos are valued at the lower of cost ang net realisable value to the Group

Stocks of property development work ir progress "WIPY) are siated at the lower o cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct lanour costs and those overneads that
have been incurred N Bringing the stocks to thair prasent toca\ions and condition
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AL eachr reps

riryg date, an assessment 13

imated

e arofit and lo

Avcryed |

aLome

Accrued incorme on loars is calculate

imoome

3 proﬁf a~d loss accou

Financial inglruments

0 has chosen o ad

The Grou

Financial sssets

reccgn’zed af trarsactbon prce, lmlegz the

sured at the present valu

transaction s me

S.aC7 assels ars suzsequently carmas at am

AT the end of eack renorung pennd financ

evidence of irparrert If an assens imn

armaunt ano the aresen value of t

rate The imparment loss 15 recognis

Other financal assets, ncloding investrments i equily nstramerts whicr are nc
jc.nt ventures, are initally measurad at falr vaiue, which s

subseguertly careed at fair value a

investmerts in eqgu’ty instruments tnat ar

retably are measured at coit less imparmae

Financial azsets ace derecoanisec when {a) the contractual

lly ail the

are settlea, or (o) subsians

to uma:erauy el tre gsset to 27 unirelaten

Financial Habillties

RBasic Ararc.al basutes,

and preference shares, ar2 initally r

firarcing transaction, where the aebt instrument 18 measared

chizcounted at a market rate of interest

reade for imoa.r
selling price @ss Costs to
55 acrount Reversals

ed over the pericd Ir which it has teen gen

el EniN:

oot Secrions 17

re estimar=a cash
eq N ore

the cnanges N fair value are recogrizsed in orofit or 0ss,
o not puibcly

risks ard rewards of the awnership of
nother party or [} conal of the asser Fas bean transferred w an

rc.Jdirg trade anc cther

ment. Any excess of e carrying armount of

Cormpigte and selt 15 recognised as an mpanrmeant 1oss
of rmparmen: lowses are aiso recognised in the orofit and

the rate of nterest zet cut in tre loan contracts Energy mconre 1s
erated

s recognised in accordarce with tne terms <ot oul in the contact Defered mooma s
e penod o whick

T orelates

and 12 of FRS 102 i respecr of finandial instrumer

~
81

s and banik Baances are imitially
tes a Fnarci-g transachon, wnere the

arr
ie of the future rece pte discoLnee at @ market rate of interest

norsed cost usng the effzctive irterest meihiod
at amortised cost are assesse for
1red e mparment oss is

=l assels measarnd objectiva
arryirg

Fe gisats onginal eective interest

e dfecnce belween the C
dows d scolnted a:
ftor less

ol sk cianies,

ton cnoe Suach assets are

ormally the tr

fradea ana wrose ‘alr valdes carnct be measured

it

from the gssel explre o

to
other party who nas ine prachcal shility

QNS o the casn fows §

the asset ar= ransferrec

thout Imposing

third oarty wi acdivoral resinchions

bank lcans, loans from fellow Grolup comrpan @3
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he Arrargement Consiiiutes a
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Cebrinstruments are subsequenty carried at amortsed cost, using the effective interest rate metnod. Fees
pa:d on the establishment ¢ loan facilit es are recognised as tranzaction costs o° the loan to the extent that

iz probabie that some o- all of the facility will ke drawr down in this case, the fee 15 deferred until the
draw dowrn cocurs. To the extent there 1s no evidence that it is probat.e that some or all of the fagility vl
be drawn down, the fee s cantalsed as a pre-payrent for liquidity services and amortised over the period
of tne faciity to which trelates

Trade payabies are chligatiors w pay for goaas o serv.ces that have seen scquired in the ordnary course
of business from suppliers Accounts payabie are classiied as current babilities if payment is due within one
year or less. If rot, they are presented as non-current tabilties Trade payables are recogrised iritia.ly at

transachon price and subsequerty measured at amortsed cost using the effective nterest method.

~ nanciai .izbilities are derecogaised when tine liablty ¢ extinguisned, that s when the contractual obligatior
is d'scnarged, cancelled or expras.

Provisions
Provisions are mace where an event has aken place that gives tne Group & lega. or constructive obligat o

that protacty requires sefflement by a transter of economic teneft, and 3 reliable estirmate can be mace of
the emount of the obligation

Provisions are charged as an exgense o the proht ard loss accountin the year that tre Group tecome
aware of the ocligation, and are measurad at the pedt estimate at e balance sheet cate of the expenditue
regured to seitle the obiigation, tak ng into account relevant nsks and uncertainties.

Hedging

Tne Group app: es hedge accounting for transactions entered into 10 manange the cash flow exposures o
bhaorrowrgs. Interest rate swaps are held (0 manage the interest rate exgposures and are designatad as cash
flow nedges of floaung rate borrowings. Changes in the fair values of derivatives designated as cazh flow
hedges, and which are effective, are recognised directly in equity. Any meFfect-veness in the hedging
relationship (being the excess of the cumulative change n far value of the hedging nstrumert sirce
irception of the hedge over the cumuianve charge in the fair value of the nedged item since Inception of
the nedge) 15 recognised ir the profiit and oss

The gan or loss recogrised in other comprenensive income is reclassined 1o the proft and loss in
accordance with the cash flows of the hedged item. Hedge accodnting iz discontinued when the hecgmg
ng critena, the forecast transaction i o longe tughl

irsirument expires, No lorwger meets the hedg

probaole, the hedged deot insirurrent i derecognised or the hedgng instrument s terminated

Share capilal

Crrdinary shares 1ssued Dy the Group are recogrised in equity at the value of the proceeas recaved, with the
excess over normiral vaiue beng <redited to share premeum,

Mon-controlling Interasts

Nonr-controiling interests are measured at their proportionats share of the acouireg’s icentifable net assets
at the date of acquisition.
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Hey accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of Anancia, statemeniis n complance with FRS 102 requires tne use of certain critical

accounting estimates. t a.so requires managament 10 exerciss :L‘Jgerr‘ﬂ"t napplyng t C mpany's

accountng policies tsiimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on histoncal
J

experience and othier factors, including expectsiions of future events that are believed to be reazcnable

uncter the croumstances, The key estimates and judgemen:s in prepanng these financial statements are,

i. Recoverability of loans and advances to customers (estimate)

Loars and advances to customers ircludng associated acerued income balances, are reviewed for
MpAEIrmert on a quartety basis. In considerng the need for & provision, management determne their best

basis As this estimate retes on a certam
Tumiber of assumonons about futlire evenis which may der from actual ouconres. including the

estrnate of the expected future cash flows on a case by ca

borrower's abi ty W "GDJJ interest and capita. due in future periods, trus uives nsa to jud(‘eﬂ’:‘&!‘t as to
wnetner there is a shortfal between the carryinig vaiue and the fair value of tre declor balance

Management note that provisions agarst loans and advarces i< a griticat s anc have therefare

performec sensitivity 2natysis o0 the provis on, Thne rezults of the sensitvity analysis conclude that g charge
of +/- ore per centin the amourt provded against the estimated baiance at nswould nave resuted in
E3om ies

/rnore expenditure Ceng charged 1o the ircoeme statement durrg e penod See nete 13 for the
carrying amount ¢f the deoters ana ;‘Jrov's‘ons at 30 Jure 2022

ii. Value of property development work in progress {'WiP'} {estimate)
Froperty develoorment WP is reviewed “or i pairment on a penodic basis, In considenng the need for a
provis:or, management astermine thep bezt est rate of the recoveraonle va uce Manegement engage an

r5 AaTOUl fulLre events wo ch may ciffer from acrusl
comes, includirg property valuations, rate of sales and gevelopment Costs.

Oxpﬂ’t external valuer 1o proy

These estmatos give rise o judgement a3 o whether there s & shortfail hetween the carrying value a~d tme
fair value of thie balarce as at the 3C June 2027 Post year end, managament ~ave reviewed re

assLMmMpuons used to determne tne value of property development WIF and nave observed ro changcs in
performance trat wolio rnpact the valoatior as at tre 30 Jure 2022 See nore 12 %o 1 Carrying amoun:

of the property develoormant WIF,

iii. Purchase price agreement {Australian entities) (judgement)
The Grouo owns two energy generating subsicdiares in Auctralia which have enterec inte purchase price
agreements (FPAS N 2019 and 2021, Tha PPAS inciude a cortract for differences "CfD" whereny te

subsidianes paylreceive amourts from the custorner pased on the aifferences between 3 fixed
and the aciual price for &k Ty sold te the Adstra.an energy rmarker. The aireciors telave tre
cuts:de the scone 2f FRS ton 12 zs it s for the sate of a non-6rs wd the CfD s typcat for

suor errangemerts Theefore it ¢ being accaurted for under RS 102 sechion 23 45 4 reverue cortraci wih
var atle considerat.on, rather tran revaluing ne entire contract o farr value

iv. Business combinations (estimate)

The cost of 2 buzmess compmation s the far value of the consizeratior g ven, las.ies rourreg p'us ne
e

1o the business comrbinatic

cozts direcCtly attr.buia combiratons is a n2y estrat

ang more details ave provides on pagas 45 to 46
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v. Decommissioning provision (estimate)
The provision for decommissioning costs i measdred at management’s best estimate of the present value

of tne experdilure reguired to settie the future obligat on to return land on waich t-ere are operatonal winrd
ang sclar farms, 1o its original condition The level of tre provsions it determnined O a sigrifcant degree by
tha sstimanon of future cismanting ang restoraficn coits, as wel. as the tirming oF Aismartement

Wind Farms (estimate):
Management nole that decornmiss.oning provisions is a cntical estimate anc have therefors performed
sensitivity analysis The resuits of the sensitvity analys:s conclude tnat a change of +/- one per cent In the

discouns rate would have resuited in £2 1m increzze/decrease 1r the provision Sea note 17 for the provision
recognised at 20 Jure 2022 Management ulilse externg expertise (o crovde an eslmated cost o
dismante ang have used a discourt rate of 2% to reflect the tme in va.ue of money and the nsks specific

to the ohination

Australian solar farms {judgement}:
The Group iz reguired to restore the leased premises of the scar fanm o ther org

|ace Tern A provision was previcusly recogrised, however in the current year ts judgerient has

essed and management beleve the lessor may wish o eithier ta<e title of the assets ‘or eitner
use or to realise value through selung the assets and as such do not believe thiat an cutliow s

propable 1o settle tnis resmoratior: obzligation

UK Solar (estimate):
Cur rg the year, a third party performed an assessmeornt of the base cost of the decormmissionng of the
Groups L solar farms The findirgs have resulted in rnatengl change i the cost estrnate ard therefore a

T

provision has been recogrised for the first ime on sorme sites The impact has resulted n a provision being
130 Jure 2022 there is

raisec for £18m o tne balance sheet decommissicning liability and “ixed assers. As
no irmpact or the profit and loss Sitez not affected are addressed pelow

UK and French Solar (judgment):

Management believe that given the nature of thesa particular aszets, the leszor may wish to either take title
of tne assets for either cortinued uie or to realize value through seiling the assets and as such do not
beliave that an cuflow is probakle to sethe thiz restorauon ooligatior Management will conunue to moritor
tre sitlation at each balance sheet date

vi. impairment of goodwill and investments {estimate)

The value of goodwil held by tre Greup and investrnerts in suosidiary underiak'ngs hela oy the Company
is reviewed anauaily for impainment The recoverability of nese balances s considered with reference to the
present value of the estirrated future cash flows. These calcuiations use cash flow projections whch extend
forward forecast business cerformance tcgether with assumpliors surrounding the excected lfe of the
asset, externzally preparec forecaste and valuations, and any ad.ustmerts requred to the discount rate to take
account of business nsk. Tne estirrated present value of theze future cash fiows = sensitive 1 the discount
rate end growth rate usec in the calculation, all of which require management's jJudgement. Testing of the
carry ng value has besn performed during the year, which has invelves several scenaros being modellec
Based on this testing and the resulting imopairment recogrised o investnents, management believes there
is sufacient

eadroom 1o suppor: the value of goodwill and investments n subsidiary entities,

Managemert note that impairment of goodwill and investments 1s a crntical estimate and have therefore
performed sensitiv ty analysis on the provision Tre results of the seqsitivity analysis conclude that a changs
of +/- one per cent i the amrount provided against the estimated talance at risk would have resulted in
£5.49m ess/maore expenditure being charged to the income staternent curing the pericd See note 8 for
the carryirg amoun: of the goodwiii and investments at 30 June 2022,




IE
B

4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
4o

Analysis of turnover by category

2022 2021
£'000 £:000

Lending activities 42,404 56,552
Cnergy opardlions — colar, raserve power and wind 365,958 179,820

Frnergy operations — & omass ard landhll 223,526 141,826
Healtheare operatiors’ 45,978 42,266
Horre ould:ng 25,034 -
Fiore aparstions o o 8,930 4853

o o 71:!.,850 ) 7 425,30

0

ro

Ircivdea in Ncome o Healthcare operabions s F174m 20210 £11 2m) relatiy ¢ to the sale of renrement vidage units,
andd S28 Srey (2021 £330 1) nirely k ¢ rengered

Analysis of turnover by geography

2022 2021
ey e renana o e i 0 e o er ceentane sennn . £'a00 £000
Furope 84,433 21893
23,436 8610

711,830 425,302

Urited Kingdam

Resst of worldd

Other income

2022 2021
£000 £'000

3,550 9454
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2022
£000

giti assots (note: §) 37,849

Impairmrent of intang bie assets (note 8) 7,913

Amcrhisat on of tan

Depreciation of angble aszes (nowe S 101,802

Aucitors’ remuneration — Carnpany and the Group's consolidated

. ) 45
Francia. statements

Auditors rerruneratcn - audit of Company's supsidianes 819
Auditors’ rermunergticn - Non-audy sarvices 246
Auchtors’ rermurergon — tax compiance services 482
Lifference on foregn excrange 7,772
Cperating sase rertals 13,783

ainuew e e mEaame v o saEaxe eaws s n L wh 5 mave e wwe XSSEXRRaSRORBHEHEEEHAREE hi R o 2ant o

{restated}
2021
£Q00

24,657
146

1134
513
672

4402

7,502

04

Note 26 detals tne prior per od adjusiments

2022
£000

2021
£'000

e gL g e s a6 A R R -‘ e

Wages and salarlweg o 85,432
Seaial seourity 2053 7,041

3,233
95,706

FESUENNIRER

41383
3,809
1676
46,868

The Group provices a defined contrinution schemes for its employees in tre UK. The amount recogrised as

an experse for the defined contrioution scheme s shown in the table above
The monthly average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was:

2022

Number

Producton T T 1032
Adrunistrabion 631

£y

wectors 3
1,666

202t
BACL
e
348
3

1,050

Tre Cornsany had cne employese other than Directors qunng the penod ended 30 June 2022 {

2021 nonel.
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F . IR IO

2022
£'000

e BRI D R AE R 87 5T Cand s s d 8 2 TFEN

During the year no aensicn contnisutions
3 ¥

The Group has no ot

A number of subs.dar es of the Grou

employess render ¢

varuation of the underlying sid.a

ard an the sardement date

r'v

reportng dae

of experse recognised takas int

» dCCOU

vest under the service and o

D or
sery ces ir ew‘har\ge for cagh, the amount of whichs

f\)rmance -

were mage in respact of the ¢

her key rnanagement (2021 nonel,

»]

onditions underying ach award g-anied

Cash-settled share-based payment transactions with employees

C Jztrnrwg mﬂ.t;*:” e ba ane

Graned dunng the ;)Q’\JJ

Closmg outstanding balance

2022
Number of
o awatﬁls
1 914 751

1 763,563

3,678,314

irectors (2021 nene)

serate g cashi-settled LT P o qualfying employses wherepy

wtermined by reference © the

hie far vaiue of tne bability for Ine gwares rrade s rmeasured ot each
Tre fair va.ue is recogrised cver the vesting pernod. The amount

et the pest gvalat e estimale of the number of Lnits exgected ©

2021
Nurmber of

]64u OOO

274 7f1
1, C914 7&1

VV’jrdJ

T £

ne total charge

nabilsty of 22407000 inc'uded

6

interest receivable and similar income

vethun creqitors greater than one

or the year was £3,133.000 (2022 £1,334,000) and at the 30 Jure 2022

vear (2021 £1,334.000)

2022
£'000

trere was a

2021
£000

\nteresigm Danx balances o : B 130 997
Interest payable and similar expenses 2022 2021
£000 E OOO

bb(rcmng(

AMOILSEHON Q7 15308 COSts ON Bar< horraw VINGS

{Prof t 0<= o] wCF"\\m /e fnanoial netrements

32,192

2,597
(1,235)
33,554

[

34,378
2,103
587
36,068
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; RN N ~ B

a) Analysis of charge in year

{restatech

2022 2021

vvvvvv P, £'ooo“ PET— EOOO‘
gu"em tax xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx s B80S 8K 5 £ s T e e i £

U corporstion tax cnarge on profit/ioss) for the year (297) 1648
Ad-ustmants in respect of or or penods 3,196 (2.8366)

i ore\qn lay suffered 5,641 -
(otal current s ok a-"Q(’Flf red ‘t o ) ) SMSAO o (1218)

Deferred tax: }

Criginat on ard reversal of trming aferencss 6,227 2,074
Ad ustments i1 respect of cror gerods (3,741) 13.998)

5,268 11,491

T-a)-(- cﬁaréé -(.m proﬁ-tl(ldss)-oﬁ 6rainary.a§:‘tfvit.ié;. - } 16,294 £,349

b) Factors affecting tax charge for the year
Thne tax assessed

for the year s higher (2021 hugher tnan the stanadard rate of corporation taxn the UK ¢f
19% 12021, 19%) The differenices are explaned below

2022
£'000

R,

Proﬁtl(ioss) before tax

© RO FI AT R A R 1 B2

Proft/lloss) be fow it plie:t by stardard rate of
corporation tax in thie UK of 19% (2020 19%,

LHects of:

Fxpenses not deductible for tax parposes

Ciher effects

Ircorme not taxable for tax purposes

Adilistments in respect Gf cror penorls

Ef wts frr 13nge 1 tax ratle

Total tax charge for the year

47 604

9,045

11,723
(868)
(8,102)
(545)
5.04!.
16 294

e A R S B R 8

(restated)
2021

£'000
(21,170}

{4022

16,076
1,022
{9,351
{6,865

1 l 489

‘ 8 349

¢) Factors that may affect future tax charge

The Finance Act 2021 enacted on 10 Jure 2021 increased the mair rate of LK corperation tax from 19% to
L Apri, 2023 Deferred taxes on the balance sheet have ceen measdred at 25%
was enacted at the baiance sheet date.

25%, effective |
which represents the future corporation ax rate that

Note 26 detalls the pr or pariod adjustments.

(2021 25%)
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8 x B

Software Goodwill Development Total
{restated) rights
Group R .. EO00 €000 €080 £000
Cost ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, e e et e s AN o RS i AR 7020 AT L v VR et
A1 July 2021 restaied] 964 726,602 10,216 737,782
i *‘f-roug%': business - 30,042 4058 34100
note 271
2,125 - 1,040 3,165
- 121,118) - 121,118)
ugm on tramh 107 - 7920 - 7930
At30June2022 5089 743,456 15314 761,859
Accumulated amortisation : ‘ 7 o -
AT July 2077 restaied) 107 159902 1034 161,043
Dizposals - (2,462) - (2462}
Loss on translaton - (192) - 1162)
irmparment - 793 - 7,913
( hqfﬂ‘-’ foir the vear ) 12 2/ 514 £23% 5/’849
At30 June2022 ' o C a9 202475 4587 208351
Net book Vall.le B o S . R S )
At 30 June 2022 2,970 540,981 13,757 557 708
b 20 cunc 2021 resiaeds s e s swom

The gain on translation of foreig” currency derominated gooawill 's recognised 17 other comprenarsive

ncome Armordsat on of goodwill is charged tC agminstration costs
Details of the cubcidiaries acguired dunng tre year ended 20 June 2022 2an be found 1 note 27,

Cunng the year the group disposed cf & wna farms n Foreand, a5 a3 resut £2 Sm of accumulared googwil

amortzation was recognised in tne current year ard 21531 of goodw il was realised or tne sale Gan oo

sale recogrised in the profit and loss in re@dtion 1o the trarsaction was

lrparmen® of £7 9 kas heen recognised or goodwall 2027 nonel

_,
-
O
w
oA
o
]
A
Ly
~

ave peen pedged as secunty for hatyities zt yvear eng 2021 ~ong)
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§ il
Land and Power Plant and Network Assets under Total
buildings stations machinery assets construction (restated)

{restated)

Group £000 £000 E'0Q0 £000 £000

E:osthv e et o a8 b e s SR 2 EERS .

AL Zuly 2027 {restatad) 8,531 217467 1.6595437 27288 43,277 2,392,000

Adrthiars 829 1,536 73.647 60462 228,006 374,480

Acauired through o5 ress 1,308 - 51,344 - 57663 110315

corrmnat ors {nete 270

-Xffair salue roverment - - %68 - 3,294 3662

Trarsfers - 68 1066 30,926 132,070 -

T osorsats (135) - (75,951) - - (76,086}

At30 June 2022 10533 319,071 1745911 118,686 310170 2,504,371

Accumulated depreciation S

Atlduly 2022 4410 90,059 414,559 1.290C - 510,318

Cnarge for the year 183 17.13% 81141 3,348 - 101,802

Disposals - {182 (221) - {403}

FX movement - - (776) - - (776)

At 30 June 2022 ‘ - 4.59.’; o ”!;0‘7,159 ‘ ‘4~94,742~ B 4,417 - 610,941

W' o Lo SEUTE L T L e At .

At 30 June 2022 5,940 211,882 1,251,169 114,269 310,170 1,853,430

At%OjJr;egaéiire;tatzdl - 4121 227408 1280878 25958 43277 1,581,Géé

Included within targible assets are capitalisea fnance costs directly attrbutable to bringing the asset inte
us2. The net carrying amounit of assets held under finance teases included in plant, machinery, fixtures ard
frongs iz £51 785,000 (2021 £51,534,000 ) Included n netwaork assets is a provision of £1,.023,000 “or
ohsolete equipment and developrnent.

The Cormpany had ne tangible assets at 30 Jurne 2022 (2021 none)

Note 26 deta’ls the prior period adjustments.




4 ] FINANCI

Al STATEMENTS 20 JUNE 2022

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
18 s

Unlisted

investments Total
Group o £’000 £‘000

Cost and net book value

A1 July 2021 11000 11.000
Acditions 125,457 129452
(lQ'S,OOOJ {105,000)
35452 35452

A KU Jung 7 11000 11 OOO

Subsidiary
undertakings Total

C?‘mpany o o £'000 £000
éogt et ven ek e ene oy e rimees v . C e

At 20 June 2027 2,313,678 2,511,678
Additions 228,300 228,300
ﬂmp( (3\(
At 30 June 2022 T [ 2,539;978 2,539,978 7
Accumulated |mpairmeﬁis o o . - - - h
AL ST une 2021 195,312 195,312

Reversal of iImparments (195,312} (195,312)

e kA ENRIN P EVKSRAITEADAMAN CORAY L pliuc, aabhadet b R SRR o

| roa "Wle""

At 30 June 2022 S e e . e

Net book value
At 30 June 2022

At 20 June 2021 2,116,366 216,366

Details of related urdartakings are shown in note 29

Unlisted rvestrnents comrprise te Groun's kolding of the memners’ cap'tal of Terdo LLF a enging

Dusings:, and its sharehoid ng in Bracken Trading Lirited Fern co-founced Tendo L_2 1 Qctooer 2022 win

the rtentior of conducung a oroportion of its future trade throug~ the nartrersmip Additions and d sposats

of urlsted investrnents relate 1o rvestmenis ang divestmernts in Tendo LLP in ane wth Fern's cash
requirements and o ulsse surpius furds. fern cas a smail snarencld g o cken Trazing Lrmre

e fro
timie to time. Ferr's irvasimert ' Bracxen Trading Uirred at 30 June 2’344 wazs Ly 20 June 2025 E
The directors do rot corsider Tendo LLP or Bracken Tracing Lirmited <o be subsidiary undertak n
Trachrg Limited.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
1L Tono oo ra s ane e

Cash includes cash in hand and decosits repayable on aemand.

Restricted casn represents cash for wh'ch the Grouo does rot have immedaiate and direct access or for
which regulatory or legal regquirerents restrict fre use of the cash
Group

2022 2021
: e b _— RO, -+~ SOOI i ko
Cachatbark and ot Farg T esges wna
Rr: tnuf_J < d;h 60,592 55 737
Cash at bank and in hand S 25&415 172 478 &

Resiricted cashiis comprised of £726,C00 beld in Escrow and £59,865,200 of cash helg in sunsidiaries with
bi-anausl distribution w.ndows.

Tre Company had a cash balance of ££,422,000 as at 30 June 2022, none of which was resricted (2021
none).

120

Group
2022 2021
£'000 E£000
Fuel, spare parts and consumaiies 26,023 18,593
Propery dovelopment WIP 156,918 73,923
“““““ © 1ssa79 947l
Tre amount of stocks recogrised as an expense gunng the year was £120,413,000 521 £41,212.000}

Included in the fues spare carts and consumatles stock value is a provision of £390,000 for unusable fuel
stock (2021 £459,600;5 Ircluding in property cevelcpment Wir s a provision of £228,000 for warrarty and

site specfic provisions,

—

nere has been o impairment recagrised darng the year on stock (2021 none! No mventory has been
pledged as security for Labilings (2021, none).

Trne Corrpany had no stoc<z at 30 June 2022 (2021 none).

P

gregli iy
ni

5
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- B TSRO

Group Company
frestated)
2022 2021 2022 2021
E'000 £000 £000 £'G00

[ B U r e S s iae g G HARANTAARE $3e Rk Mimb et ankebT Tl B b R o e b

Amounts falling due after one year

Loans and advarces to customers 137,662 16,128 - -
Amounts falling due within one year
Loans and advarces 1o custarmers 223,239 363,384 - -
TTade debors 42,050 16,121 392 8
Amolrts owed by relaied partics niowe 24; - 3950 32,950 12,751
Other degiors 20,199 24,972 3,843 5008
Corporatior tax - £,603 2,527
Darnvative financ atinstrurnants inoe 27) 54,409 6469 -

145,602 154,375 176 32615
623161 598002 39,888 50383

Loans and advances

to customars arc cated net of provisiens of £13,874 000 (2C21 £28199.0000.
Frepayrmeantz and accrued income are statea net of proviaons of £7735000 (2021 £13,741.000).
N interest is charged on arounts owed by groug underakings, as tne cutstancing balances are unsecured

and repayable on demand (2021 none).

MNote 26 detaiis the pnor period ad ustrnents
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A4 oonavn oo LE s
Group Company

restated)
2022 2021 2022 2021

£000 £600 £'000 - koo

éank toarflﬁsqébr:é‘g\‘xerCfa;”is fnot@ ‘ 37,732 47386 - -
Trage credions - 58,004 23,390 ‘ 76 16
Cner taralion and sooal secarity 8,161 - - -
Other craditorns 24,362 55,806 - -
Amcunts due to related parlies (rote 24) - - - 20,203
Finance lezses incte 16) . 2,428 3,147 - -

Denvatve Tnarc at astruments irgte #1; - 143 - -
75,465 72,087 373 2,705

Accrats ana deferred income
256,152 202,055 449 22,924

Group
2022 2021
Amounts falling due between one and five years £'000 £000

Bank loans and overdrafts (nnta 18] 383,070 247,297
Firance leases ncte 161 5,899 6,125
Denvative financial mstrurments {note 23) - -
Other credeors 5,364 5415

D T R R e R

Group
2022 2021
Amounts failing due after more than five years £'000 £:000

b o e Y on £ e S

Bank loans and overdrafts (note 18] 573,416 577,235
Finance lezses note 16) 24,676 24495

Cernvative AinarciEl instrument - 42,772

598,092 644502

Toia! creditors falng due after mare than one year 992,425 903,339

Tre Company has no creditors due in greater than one year.
Amalnts owead 10 related parties are unsecured, non-interest bearng and repayable on demand

Note 26 detals the prior perod adjusiments.




4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022
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A8 e L v e

2022
Group ) . i £000
D‘Jpworﬁn ‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ RIS et e n R0 <ot R et E87 73‘2‘.“ .
Ciue betweer one 570 fve years 383,070
De inmaore t five years 573 416

247297
J?? 23“
371, 9]_8

The Cornpany rad ~¢ bank foans at 30 June 2022,

The bank loars are secured against assets of the Group wth each wan as held by the subsidiary shown below

Interest rate

CEmonth SOMIA plus 160% 429,138
Cedar Enargy and Infrastruciure Lemred LIBOR/EURIBOR plus 2.00% -
3 rmonth EURIBOR plus

Flios brergy o 120%, Fixed rate 170% 30,946
hos Frergy 5 12% + 6 month EURIBOR 56,079
Boomerarg Fnergy Lirred & month SONIA plus 1.50% 284,348
[aringtor Pomnt Sodar Farm Pty imien 6.49% (swap rat;;;%i?g& 114,026
Meltorn Renewabie Znergy UK Lirted & month SONIA plus 2.35% 85,718
Culacca W Howoo PTY Lt 1.7% + BBSY 31,614
“lvia tiorees T irted 5%+ SONIA + 2 5% non- 12,306
utilisation fee
Fixed rate 2.5% 43
......... e TS . 1044,213

2021

87A 818

SONIA reptaced LiBGR as e
esulted i no commrercial impact o the business.

Finance leases

The future rmimom rance ease payrents are as folows

Mot later than one year 2428
Later tran one yosr and not tater tran ave yeaars 5,899
| ater trhan Jve years 76,461
Total gross paymierts 84,788
Less. finance cha _ _ (51,785)
Carryring armount ﬁf the liabi(itf 7 7 33,003

affective nterbank lending rato system from 1 January 2022, The rate change

2021

3166
6,196
72,013
81,375
47.6069)
33,766 7

£000

The finarce leases primarly relate to a leased bu'lding and realthcare equioment There are N0
rental, rerewa’ or purchase onton clauses. R n ! Fir

cecured agamnst the eased a

The Company had no finarce leases at 35 June 2022,

contrgent

ance leases are
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
£F roanos Lo ines

Decommissioning {restated) {restated)
provision Deferred tax Total
SMOUD E00  £00 €000
At 1 July 2021 20,439 20933 41,372
Ircrease recognized n profit and loss 21 11495 11.516
Ircrezse recognized through other comprahierave income - : 18,202 18,202
Imgairment 16 - 16
Increase recogrised n fxed aosets 23,656 - 25656
Recogrised on subsiciary acquis’tions - (3,568) (3.568)
A LSTMENT 1N respect of pror years - (5465) {5.4659)
Urvanding of disTourl 249 - 249
Ad ustment relating to change Ir accountirg esteate (3,373} - {3,373)

Gan onranslaton R 15 - - 15 )
At 30 June 2022 41, 023 41,597 82,620

Tre decommissioning provison is held 1o cover future obligauons to return and on which there are
\
3|

C
operational wind, biormass and sclar farms, 1o their ongina! condition. The amounts are not expected o be

utinsed for in excess ©f 25 years.
e Compary had no preovisions at 30 June 2022

Note 26 details the prior period adjustments

2 I T e TG P AT AT S KE E e 1

x

The Group and Company have the following share capital:

Group 2022 2021
Allot{ed cailed -up and fully pald - E’OOO £000
16166229]1 ’JGZU 1496 755,258] .

X ' ) ) ' 49,671
Crdnary shares of £0.10 each 161,662 149.676
Company 2022 2021
Aliotted, catled-up and fully paid T £g£o000 £000

11202
1616622011 {2021 1,496,755,258] 161,662 149,676

Crdnary snares of £0 10 2ach

Durng the year the Group 1ssued 119 866 754 (2021 1.501.299,278 ) ordinary shares of £0.10 each for an
aggregate nomunal value of £11,987,C00 (2021 £150,12C,000) Of the shares issuea during the year, tota!
consideration of £203, 750,000 (2021: £2,316,695 000} was paid for the shares, giving rise (c a prermiurm of




L]
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£191 763,000 (20621 E173118,000) Durirg the year the Groun purchasea nil (2021, 4 444,020 of itz owr
ordirary shares of £0.10 each with an aggregate nomina, value of £011 (2027 £444 000). Tota: consideration
of Enit (2021, £6 844,0001 was paic for ihe snares, giving 1se 1o a prem um of £ri. (20210 £6,393.000),

The Groun has adopred predecessor acceurting prnapes a2 it was formed as part of a group
recorstruction, theretcre the share capital and share oremiur accourt are treated as if they had always
axisted. Movernerits in snare capital arising toth before and after the restructure are reporied as rmovements

o the Group share capital

During the year the Company 1ssued 119,866,754 12021 1,501,199,278] crdinary snares of £0.10 each for an
sggregate nomal vaue of Jl“*?’J 0 {20210 £150,120,000). Of the shares issued during the year, total

consideraton of £203.750,000 (2021 £2,31€,695 030} was paid for the srares, givirg rise to a prem:um of

£161,764 000 (2021 ;’,2,166,575,[]3@), Durmg the year the Grouo purG k"sed nl (2021 4,444 020) of 15 own

ordinary shares of £0 10 each with an aggregaie noinal value of £ni (2022 £444.600). Tota!l consideration
~

of £l (2021 £6,844 000 was paia for ’he SharEs, GhvNg rae O a prerm um f;-i Erit{ CEE, 599 000

There 1s 3 single class &° ord.nay shares. Triere are "o restrichions or the districulior of dividends and the
Y Y

repayment of capital

Cash flow hedge reserve
The casr flow hedge reserve s uzed 1O record transactiors arsing Tom the Group's casn low
hedging arrangements.

Merger reserve
The merger reserve ariset from tre dffere-ca betweer the far value of 1e sirares issues and the Hoch
values of the subsidiaries acquired

A9 % g e

The moverment in non-conrollng interests was as foilows

Group
Mote 2022 2021
B EOOO HHEOOO
3721 9570
Sale of subs-diary underrakings and acquisimon a7 _ 1,842}
of non-cortrolling interast
Total comprehensive loss atnputalie o (6.622) 4007

ron-controil ng nteresns

AT SC June 2022 (2,901) 3721
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
20 o

As at 30 Cune 2022 there were ro contingenc.es ac

r roup o Company.

narcal assets and dablites

Group Company

2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000

L SRS ke e e s ST,

Group

P

Carrying amount of financial assets
Diebt instruments rreasurcd at armmorised Lost 423,150 430556 4,235 17,767

PR ot b ¢l R e R g AR D AR P AR AR

Measured a: far value through proft and loss - 6,469 - -

AL

valde through ether comoreher

Carrying amount of financial liabilities
Measured at amcrised oost 1,126,163 956,384 76 16
- 42,772 - -

Measurea st fair value throg

SRR TTNLN
DECAPS R oal

PR
RO

A 5 Yt
Sk R
TRodsan s AR &
ST IR ‘:‘;}3
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Derivative financial instruments

a

The Group's finarcial nsk management seeks 1o minineise the exposure to market risk, Credit ngy, taudity

ard cash fiow nsk, ard energy market rizk

a) Market risk

Energy market risk

The erergy sector is experiencing significant furbulerce and there ic a nisk that forecast levels of income are
nct achieved due to changas in wholesale energy prices, off-take contracts or governmert sucsidies.
Changes in Government policy, or regu.ator intervenuon may resJalt in reduced ncome streams within the
group due to acditicnal levies,

Currency risk
The Group presents ts consoldated inancial staterrants in stering and conducts susingss in 3 rurrber of
n

cther currences, pracipally Euro and Austra.an dodar Conseguent y, tne Groug s exposad 1o forsign

exchange risk due to overents, woich affect the Groun's transactional expenses ana the

ranslation of earrirg ¥ Its nen-sterling operations

Transactional exposures

Transaclticnat exposLres arse from admirisrstive and other expense In currengies other thar the Group's

prasentat ongl currency (Serling) The Groun eners in w0 forward foreigr‘. exchange cortracts and foreign
eschange swans 16 ritgate the excharge rate nisk for certain foreign currency payables and recoipts, The

forward currency contracts and swaps are measared a7 far vaue wnich is determined Jzing valuaticr

techn gues that uliise observable inpufs The xey inputs used i valuing e ders e5 are ~a forward
exchange rates for GREAUD ana GBPFUR On 30 June 2022 the fair value of the forege currency

contracts was an azset of £ni (2021 LEARI0O0D) and a \abmzy of Erni (7021 £143.000;

Translational exposures

Balance sheet transational exposures arse on corscslidation on the retransation of the bzlance sheet of
acr-sterhing aperatens into sierling, the C usz presentat:oﬁ-ai currerncy The level of exp surc is reviewed
by maragement and the potential f“'ﬂ\gﬂ exchange movenent is witelr an acceptable level of risk and

therefore, typically, tne Group's policy 1o ot 10 aclivey hedge these exposures,

Interest rate risk
Trhe Groun has exncsure o fuciuations ninterest -ates or 1 borrowings. Where the Group enters nto
borrowirg arrangements with ficating rate inierest, 3 swap arrangement s erleren inte 1o fix a portion of
the interestin ordar fr‘it;qate aganst an increase in inerest raes, [re porton of interest to be fixeg is
zszessed on a case by case basls. Maragemen: can elect whether to Fedge account for trese

and have elected o app y hedge accou

ar-angements O gn ndricual transachicn basis
- .

Swacs are bas2c on a prinapal amourt of the woan facdity and matur2 o

e cutstandimg interest rate swaps Pave a matinty i excess of five years anc tre far
valug 1511 an ss3et gosition of £5/-;‘C;“ C 2021 haodhty of ££2.629,000;
Price risk
Trne Grour 13 a thort- to medium-terr lencar (o :he residertial oroperty market To t-e exent that there 15

fots

detarioration in the lovel of nouse prices that a the properties that tne Group's lcans are secured
against, there is a rsk that the Group May ot recouc its full exposure Tris s 'fltwgated Dy the =hort-term

rature of the 0ans and tre conservative level of ioen to va:ue thar the Group s prepared o lend at.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b} Credit risk
Customer credit ris< s mutigated through the Group's credit control policies, which are in place to ensare
that our customers have an aporoprate credit hrstory and are monitored on an ongoirg bass

c) Liquidity risk
ciguidity nsk are managed oy ersunng that suffcient cash s avaiable to furd contnuing and future operat o

Liguidity risk arises or pank lcans in place across the Group and s managed throwgh carefu: monitornng of
covenants and sensible levels of debt Borrowing 15 on a long-term hasis, whergas our revenue iz received
througrour the year, as well as interast and reder~ptions on our shori-term 1oan Sook. Fflow rigk ig
managed tirough orgoeirg ca:k flow forecasting to ensure recapts are sufiicient to meaet t‘a= lites as they
fall due,

o SN PREE B

Althe year end the Growp had casitar commitments as folows

2022 2021
Group ‘ £'000 £ OOO
Cortracteqa for but rot provided in these fnanc.al siatemen 347,254 90.156
Undrawn facilities on leans 1o oTowers 173,600 82,683

AT 30 Jone the Grous rad total fulure minimum lease payments under non-cancellasie operaung leases

3 foliows
2022 201
Land and Other Land and Other
buildings bldings
£‘000 £'000 £:000 [elsle)
Paymen’s due
Norlater thar one year 8,707 661 803 749
Later tnan one year and not ater thar frve 31,627 726 20,369 1,686
YEErs
Later than five years 95,664 - 118,932 S
135,998 1 387 157332 2444
Tne Group had no other off-balarice sheet arrangements (2021 none)

Under sections 394A and 479A of the Cornpanies Act 2006, the parent company Fern Trading Limited has
guaranteed all outstanding liabilites on those companies taxing the exemption @ which the subsidiaries st
on pages 79 to 90 were subject to gt the 30 June 2022 unul they are satshed in full These babilfies total
£915rmn. Suchk guarantees are enforceable against Ferm Trading Limeted by any parson to whom any such
lizbiity 15 due.

Tne Company had no capital or other corrmitments at 30 June 2022
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
R

On 11 Suly 2022, Fern Trad-ng Develoomen: Limited UFTDUY, a suosidiary of the Gr
Darlington Pa.nt Hleiden Pty Lirmied 10 Octopus Australa Master Trust Asmall proft

on the zale

Or tne 1zt of Decemiber 2022, the Group acguired rights wo a £25m creait voucher a~d the right 1o use
mrobile licensns from Three UK, via a Srategic Connectivity Agreement, thus miaking the first step fowaras
pecoming an rmobile virtual netwer cperaton.

- BN IO AN

Under FRS 102 33.0A dist
members of a Group, provided that any subsdiary wnich s 8 pany (e tre ransaction is wholy owned by

o between two or more

Cslres nead mot e given of ransaciions enterso N

such a rrember

During the year, fees © CE6E1.154.600) were crarged o the Group by Octopus
g ye

.
]'_
Investrments Limited, a re sigrificant influence over thz ente / Octopus Investmenis

Lirned was recharged legal Cfees totallng £10,155 (2020 £16,500; by the Group Al the
g S| oy

ra
year erd, an amount of 13,0001 was cutsiandng whchis nolodedin trade Creditors

The G!oup isertrilectoa estmeant in Terido LLP. a relared party due o key
rmanagement personng oroft egua. to E:,24~J,OJO w2 £44500600 has
besr recogn sed by the Groun A the year end, the Grodp hias an nterest n the memier’s <apal of
F35.452,000 {2021 £11.000.0500; ard accrued inceme due of £5,276,050 2021, £479 003)

The Crouo engages niending actvit es whicn incude palances provided to o qant

entiies with key manage net persormel in commaon, cans of £63.490,000 {2027, £173,224 000, accrued
ncore of £19 /789 000 (2021 F76.202 000) and deferred income of Enil (20210 £101.000) were

at year enc Juncg the year interest mcome of £7,160.000 (2021 £17,581.000) and fees of 3541
£536.000; were recogn sed in relat.on o these loans,

Curing the yesr the Group acguired 9 reserve power comparies from comparnies managad by COclopus
Investrnants Limimed, a related garty See note 27 a) for deta s of the comrpganies acquires

r

at 30 Juna 2022 Eril (2021 £2 950,275 was owed (¢ the Company by Bracken Trad rng Lirnited, a relatex

arty by key management sersoncel v commorn.

s

T)]>

Trrher thar Tne transactions aisciosad sbove, the Corrpany's ather relatec carty transacuors were with ifs

Dy Owned subsiclary meraters of the Grouo,

I the opinor of e drectars Trere s o Wrate Controllrg naniy Sr carent comoany
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

2E o e st

a} Group structuring review

We have conducted a review of prior years’ accourting ireatrment of intercompany restructuring. e trs

review management identifed unarmortised goodwi | Balances in relator to these transactions We Have

adjusted the previous years o reflec

transactons cccurreq, T he sccumulated impact for the

i

was F8m (2020 £5.3rm) the movement of £2 7 has been restaied

t e implementation of amorts

goodwill a

numpers A surrnary of the mpact of tne correction is provided oeiow

ation backdated to when the relevant

"
i

ortisat on in the prof: and loss for 2021
mruughout tne 2021 comparative

Year ended Adjustments Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated) (restated)

Group £'000 - £'000 £'000
Govodwell _;&),998 (5,335 578 653
Retained earmngs 41,185 5335 46,520
Year ended Accumutated Year ended

30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) (restated}

Growp _ _E'co0 . £o00
Goodwill 6u2 711 (8,049) 534,662
Rened =arnings (123,920) 8,045 (115,871

As part of the review of the intergroup restructunng menicned above, management i[dentfied one of the

restractures bad hesn ncorrectly accounted for in a sub section of tne groug. NG further errors were
discoverad in the review. The accumulated impact for goodwill armicrisation in the profit and loss for 2021

was £2 5 (2020 £2

numbers Thisarmpact 1o the 2020 operning reta
debt experses. Management have corrected the identified errar with the foldowing mpac:

Ined earnings wa

3m). the moverment of £1 2m has been restated throughout the 2021 comparative
s offset by £2.1m wnitten back against pad

Year ended Adjustments Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) (restated)
Group o go00 000 £000
Gocawil e 83988 (29.183) 554,805
Retained earrings 41,185 899 42,084
Cettors 842,549 (2,724) 833,825
Crediors amounts faling due within ene year {232,813} 4896 (232,317}
Fixed assets 1,346,655 30,512 1,377.167
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) (restated)
Group - . £000 £'000 E’OOO
E;og;v: H o B 602,711 ‘ (27562) 574 748
Retained eamings (123,220} {321) (124.241)
DCebtors 500,726 2,724) 598,002
Credirors amounts falung dus within onc year (207.318) 496 {206,822)
Fixed assets 1,551,170 30,512 1.581682
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b) Deferred tax adjustment

We have conauctee a review of all conschdaton entries at subsecnons of tne group We nave dentified an
error relating 1 2029 when deferred tax adjJstnents were ertered a3 o consclicaton entry and nad
fuoSequmwﬂ‘* nat been revarsed We have checked the tax per subsidiary account and nave ensured that the

relevan s are correct The error was posted at 2 conscldated leve. ony and Ras ~ow been corracted

Year ended Adjustment Year ended

320 June 2020 30 June 2020

(as stated) (restated)

Group ) N - __£oo00 £000 £000
Retained e2rmings 41,185 {4.764) 36421
Craditers amounts falling due within one year (232,813} 4764 (228,049}

Trs has a xnock ofect inte Sune 2021, tre restated oalances are as “c.lows

Year ended Adjustment Year ended

30 June 2021 30 June 2021

{as stated) ({restated)

Group . F.'OOO‘ S £'000‘ EOOD
Retained earnings {123.620) (4.764) (128,684}
Creditors arcourts {alkng due within one yvear (207,338 4764 {202,554}

In prepanng the tax computattons for 2072, tne Group's tax advisors have nolized an overlooked

ASSLIMPL O 1y Previcus years 1ax conscldation ca.cuiat ors Within the previously unrecognised deferred t
assets held with in the group some were avallable on g consolidated level 10 offsel the Group's deferred ax
bability, On a~ ndiv doal company dbasis the deferred tax in orev ous years had been correctly recosn.sed, A

part of these deferred assets are n relar.on to cash fow hedges held withirn the group wrich are accountes

for withiz other compretiens ve incamce The accurmulated impact for the tax Charge in the prett ang [oss

for 2021 was £12m (2020 £15.3m) the movernant of 330% nas been restared throuchout the 2021

cornparatve rumbers

A summMmary of tre irnpact of the corracton is provided below

Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated} (restated)

Group o E£'000 '000 £000

C st e S e emmtarben. - © e e st e S EURREEMERAI R s sman h T Y %R 6 EEREATALaan e Lo St R r s e amn e

pel

ety ~ed sarrings 41,185 (15,299) 25886
aen fiow Nedge reserve £3.337 {3,875} 59,662

!
|
i
|
|
i
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
{(as stated) (restated)
e e e £o00 _  ......E000 ... E000
Cash fiow hedge roserve 17098 (2,115) 14,979
Deferred tax provisions (38,145) 17.212 (20.933)
Summary of prior period adjustments:
Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) {restated}
Group ) o ) ] £000 £'000 £'000~
Goodw I 583,988 (34,517) 549471
Cebtors 842.54% (2,724) 839,825
Fixed assets 1,346,655 30512 1.377.167
Ceferred tax provisions (36,484} 19,174 {17,310}
Cach flow hedge reserve 63857 {3.875) 59,962
Cremitors armourss failing due within one year (232 813} 5,259 (227,554
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
{as stated) (restated)
Group N B o £000 £’000 e £000 !
Retamed earrings ‘ "(123,920) 12120)  (136.049)
Goodwil 602,711 (36,011) 566,700
Debtors 600726 (2,724) 598,002 !
Fixed assels 1,551,170 30,512 1581682 i
Deferrad tax provisions 138.145) 17212 (Z0.933)
Zash flow hedge reserve 17.098 (2,119) 14,975

Credtors arqourts faling due wathiin one year (207,318) 5,259 {202,059}
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
270w

a) Reserve Power acquisition

N ey

On 2 duiy 2021 the Groun gcquired 9 reserve power sites through the poerchase of 100% of the snare capial
for conside ation of £13

The follow .o tables sumrnarnse the consideralion paid by tre Group, the fair value of (e assets acquired,
! i b [

sU
and the liabilit.es azsumed at the acgustiorn date

Consideratio ] £000

R bl & A SR e ee 2 T T YOOV AT i e x4 T RN ma R i e e aheneaus s s TEURSNS O b caaans TSRO ESRSR £ A

¢ goodw L arising are as follows

Book value Adjustments Fair value
. E000 Eooa .Fooa

80,788 (2R.553) 52,235

Trade and other recelyables 294 - 2594

Fixed

aseelts

Frepayrnents 635 - 635

Castand cash eauvaienrs 7,858 - 7858

o , - ey ]
fracte and other creditore {2,206} - (2206} i

Lesans (58,816} - (58.8186)

Net assets aﬁ;uireﬂ - B 28,553 (28,553) -

I

Total consideration -

Gooawill resulting from the busness combination was nil

The comzcidated staternart of comorenensive ncome for the year incwudes £E45, 2805 C00 revenue and &

profit after tax of £68E,000 in respect of this acquisition,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b} Doveryard Limited acquisition

On 22 October 2028, tre Group acquired Doveryard Limitad and ts subs dary torough the purchase of
100% 0" the snare capital for considerstion of £13,474.0

Tre following tables summarise the consideration paid by the Group, the fair value of assels accuired, and
Fabilities assumeds ar the acquisition dale.

Consideration £’000

B T B T O S

Cazh 12 377

Cirec J'bu’ame costs l 037

Total conﬂderatmn 13 414

Cetals of the farr value of e net assats acquired ard goodwiil arsing are as follows,

Book Adjustments Fair
values value

£000 £'000 £'000

b et e PR T R OB R T E1 B R RAT B A L G o o ne S TEESER LoAgrEn

f—'xe d daa(}ts 5656 - 569
Trade and other recawables 52 - 52
Frepayrmen's ang accrued Ircome 193 - 193

Trade cJ"d )U‘

" 3ay - 347

Total consideration o 3,048

(467) - 1467)

13067'

Goodwil result’'rg from the business comnirat.en was £13.067000 and has an estimated useful Ufe of 25
years, reflecting the lifespan of the assets acquired.

Tre consoldates statement of cornprehensive income for the year inciudes £nil of reverue and & 1oss
before tax of £123,000 1n respect of thus acquis ton,
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<} Dutacca acquisition

On 27 August 2021, the Groun acgured Duiacca WF Holdco FY _td and e three subsidianes through the
purchase of 100% of the share capitai for consideraton of £115, 580,000.

The foliowing tables summarise the consideration pad by tne Group, the farr value of 112 assels acoures,

and the liabilties assume at the acguisiion date, A kst of the entties ac quired incluced in note 2%

Consnderatlon AUD"OOO Exchange Rate £000

 aariaden TR a7 7 % % Aga o 7 TEEGo. o7 STNNAGE pen T YISm0 8 ¥eawer Nt e . P dEeEe o SR wfaen. L ERaRTAa  wt B et TRTEEaccl LT MV BYber oS ITOREmERLs. 2%

C ash 217557 18504 115,085
Cirectly attributatle costs 1 126 18504 565
115,680

Total consideration o 7 a1mess

Details of the far value of the net assels acquired and iIntanghic arsing are as folows: :

Book Adjustments Fair Book Adjustments Fair
values value values value E
( . AUD’OOO AUD:DOO AU D'OOO ;'000 £000 . f.’OOO ;

Fized assats 107,633 - 107,653 56,837 - 56 957 :
Trade anc othor recavables 10,131 - 10,131 5,357 5,357
Cast and cash ecuivalents 102.072 - 103072 54,525 - 54,525 !
A(. unu an ok deferred in come 110,952} - (10 552) b 797J - ("\ 793) §
Net assets acqmredr o 209884 L 209884 111 026 o 111 026 i
- GIH e e T e e e RS et e s 4634 .

Total consudersiion VVVVVVVVVVVV . N . o 218 683 . T 115,530 ) {
Inzangisles resulting from tha asset parchnase was £4 654000 and bas an esumaed useful Ufe of 30 years
ref-ectirg the sfespan of the assets acqgu red ¢

The consoldated statemant of comprehersive income for the year ncludes Fril of revenue and a oss afier
tax of £237.000 - respect of tis acguisition.

H
H
i

w«*@o‘f iy
e
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

d) Zestec Asset Mangement Limited acquisition
On 31 January 2021, the Group acquired Zesiec Asset Mangement Urited a project sources for rooftocn

solar, through the purchase of 100% of the share capita. for consideration of £4,7565,000

Tre foldowing tables summarise the consideration paid by the Group, the far va.ue of assets acquired, and
babilites assumed at the acquisition dale

Consad rat:on

{ash
Deferred considerancn -
Gire ‘C"/ attriputable costs 1,093
Tota{ conslderatmn 4,765
Detals of the fair value Cf tne net assets acquired ard goodwil arsng are as ‘ollows
Book Adjustments Fair
values value
£'000 £000 £'000

Fixed 5505 156 - 1_26
lrade and other Crecitors {574) - (574}
Trade and other receivaties 400 - 400
Cash anc cash equivaienss 1015 - 1019
Otrier loans 46) - (46}

Net assets acquured 955 - 955

hgom wu 7 2810
Total cons:deratlon 4, 765

Goodwill resulling from tne busiﬂ ess combiraton was £3 810,000 and has an ezumateg uzefut life of 10

years reflacting the estimated lifespan of the assets acquired

The conscldated staternent of comprehensive income for the year nc.udes £158 C00 of revenue and a 0ss
of £49

ate
£4G94 (00 in respect of this acquisiton

befcre ta
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

e) Elivia Homes acquisition

On 23 May 2022, tre Group acguired Elivia Holdings Lim ted and its subsidizries, through the purcha
10C% of the share caoital for consideration of £31, JEM 00

~

The followng tables summarise the consideration pad by e Group, the

napilities assurned at the acguisition date, A lst of the ertites acquired are mcluded 1N note 29

se of

fair valle of assefs acguired, and

Consideration | ... 000
f'ostf, 585
Totai consnderahon T i 31:6&4
Details of the fair value of the net assets acquired and coodwill arising are as foliows
Book Adjustments Fair
values value
E‘DOO £'000 _£'000
Fued arfety e e - . . g418wm s e . 418
Intangiole assots 11,757 - 11,767
SOk 59,939 - 69,939
Trade and oter debtors 2,609 2,609
Cash and cash eguivaenis 11,603 - 11.603
Acoruals and defered ncome {420) - {4203
Provisions {530) - 930
£.000 (1400 4,600
3 - {69453)
i;lé;;vassets acquired 31,53:;';“% (1,400) 7 o 30 133W
Total consideration 31684
Coodwil. resslting from the business combinaton was £1,551. 000 and has an estimatea useful Ufe of 16

years, reflecting the Uiespan ¢f the assets acguired
g

The corsalidated statement of comprenersive income far the year ncludes revenue of £25 024

of £2.552,00

1O ir resp

profs br::‘ora 5

ecl of ths acquis ion

ClDanaa
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Qur reported resuds are prepared in acccrdance with Un ted Kingdom Accourting Standards, including

.

Fnancia. Reporting Stancard 102, as detaiied in tng Tinancia: Statements starting on page 35 of the Annual

of=1
Reporl 1 measunng our perfonmance, the Hnancial measures that we use inciude those hat have been

der'ved from our reported results Iin order to elimirzie factors that distort year-on-year compansors. These
are cons'dered nor-GAAP financ al measures

Net debt
We provide net debt in agdibon to cash and gross debt as & way of assessing our overall casm position and it
is comeuted as folicwe:

2022 2021

Bapkmdramdo;rdrdfr ,,,,,,,, oo £ kR 3t i N bt < 871918 :
Crker lcans 14.i5 5364 -
Gross de,bt i e e e o e e e ﬂl oig;ﬂsmézﬂmmmmgn_g’.s

Net debt 793 167 699 440

Mote £000 EODO -
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

EBITDA

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation ard amortsation (E3ITEDA" s caculated by adjusting proit afrer

tax for inferest, tax, der;rec_\guo 1 and amortzation, in additon to ncome and exparises thal
the GPy to day operations of tre Group We orovide EBITDA - addition to profit after tax
th

assass our performance without the effec

ts of francng ard capital expendisires

The foillowing table detals the adiustmenits made to the regorted resulls.
{restated)
2022 2021
o Note o 5'000 £000
Proﬁtl(l;;ss) for the ﬁnancml year o B R o 31 310 mmu%wm’Sl 01?)“
Add
Amortisanon o antangible g z 37,849 37,704
mMpairmect of tanaible assets & 7913 -
Deprecialion of Girgibis assets 2 101,802 £4,697
Interest cayanie and solar oapenast 5} 33554 36,067
Excentionat iiorms 1105
Tax / 16,294 8,249
s
micorne from other flaed asset investrronts (5.249) (449)
Share of operating proft s joint venture - (1,755}
Profit on disposal of subsic.anes {29,532} 128,568)
Inlerest recornabio and sirm far inceme £ {130} {997}
EBITDA o | 194,916 104,036

do not relate ©

as it allows us to

Note 26 getals the prior penod adjustments.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

2O

Cetailz of the subsidiary undertakings are as follows.

Name

Abbots Riptor Sciar Energy Holcing Limited”

Adalinda Solar 2=V 1 Limited”™
Agriso-2 SARLT

Al Metworks Uimyted
Alipsints Finre Limized®

Auchercarroch Energy Lirmted? ™
Avguhine Land Company Limited™™
Averue Solar ~arm Limted”
Barbury Power Limited™

Batisolare 5 SARL?
Batisslaire 7 SARL®

Beetley Erergy Limited™
Be.ghton Energy Lim:ted
EBeirneun Wind Farm Ltd™
Bellhouse Erergy Limited”
Birch Estate Sclar Lirnited™
Blaby Sclar Farm Limited"”
BNMRG IOW Limited™
Boam Energy Limited™
Boomerang Energy Limited
Boreas Energy Limsted™
Bratton Flieming Limited™

Breck Solar Limited™

Bryn Yr Gdyn Solar Developrenis Hoidings

Lirmited"”

Bryn ¥r Odyr Solar Developments Lim.ted™

Bury Power Lirnited”
Cadoxton Reserve Power Limited™
Caicias Energy Limited™

Carx Limited®

Country of Class of
o )ig&grgoration shares
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
France Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Grdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
France Ordinary
france Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
LK Ordirary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
1
UK ' Crdinary
UK ' Ordma?y
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
freland Ordinary

Principal

~ Holding activity

100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Holding company

Energy generation
Energy generation

Holding comparny

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
Enargy generation
Energy generation
Energy gereration
Energy generation
Holding company
Erergy generation
Dormant company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation

Energy generation
Holding company

Eriergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company

Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of
NIME e e incorporation _ shares
Caswell Solar Farm Limized” UK QOrdinary
Cathkin Energy Limiteg? ™ UK Ordinary
Causilgey Limuted™ UK Crdinary
Cedar Erergy and Infrasiruciure Limited UK Ordinary
CEPE Berceronns S4RL7 France Ordinary
érc:r;jazlﬁoéosw!%r?; e Fraduction d Energ e ds France Ordinary
CEPE de iz Saiesse SARLY France Ordinary
3 o b ac e [ rale Nzl la =
Fetucion o Eueryn e oo SRl FEICe Crdnary
CEPE de Marsanne Sa%17 France COrdinary
CEPE Hau du Saule’ France Crdinary
CEPE de ta Rochs Guatre Rivieres SARL France Ordinary
CEPE du Days de 5t Sene SARLY France Ordinary
CERS S AL France Ordirary
Chelson Meadow Energy Limitaed” UK Ordinary
Chishon Soiar Farm Soldings Limited” UK Ordinary
Chuttenag Solar Two Lirmited” UK Ordinary
Cilgwyr Energy Limited UK Ordinary
Cuann Farm qirmuted™ UK Ordinary
Clarammond Solar 5PV 1 Limied™ UK Ordinary
Cik Developments Lirited’ UK Ordinary
CLF Enverogas Lmited™ UK Ordinary
CLP Servizes Lirn terl UK Ordinary
CLPE 19393 Uimted UK QOrdinary
CLPE 1992 Lmitad™ UK Ordimnary
C..PE Held ngs Limiteo® UK Ordinary
C LK Ordinary

UK Crdinary
C UK Ordinary
CLPE ROZ -1 himiteg™ UK Ordinary
CLPE ROCT - 2 Limited” UK Ordinary
CLPE ROT - 3 Limmited UK Ordinary

Holding activity

et amEn:

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
10G%
100%

100%
100%
1007%
10C%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

Principal

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company

Energy generation
Enargy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generaticn

Energy generatior
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generaticn
Holding company
Erergy generation
Dorrnant company
Energy generation
Eriergy generation
Dormant company

Provision of QoM
services

Dormant company
Darmant company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding cecmpany
Holding company
Holding compary
Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principat

N e e o ACOFPOFAMION | shares Holding activity o
CLPE RCC - 3A Lirmed™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
CLRPE ROC - 4 Limired” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
CLPE ROC - 44 Lirmted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generaticn
Ciyre Power Limitea™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Colsterwortn Lnergy Limited™” LUK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
Connon Bridge Energy Limsted™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Cotechach Erergy Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Cour Wind Farm (Scofland) Lirnited™ ™" UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Crapnel farm Limited™ UK Crdinary 1G0% Energy generation
Crayfern Homes {(South Coasty Limied ' UK Crdinary 100% Efi\tfjifgglrgzcci
Crayfern Limited*! UK Crdinary 100% Construc_tion of

domestic buildings
Crayfern Sunley (Sundold) Lmited™ UK Ordinary 160% t?fi\(c'e'ifgz:rgwetccé
Crayrmarsn Lirited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cressing Salar Farm Limited” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Cuivery Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cynon Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Dafen Reserve Power Lirnited” UK COrdinary 100% Energy generation
Dairy House Sclar Lirrited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Deepdale rarm Solar L'rited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Doveryard omitec™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Drapers Farm Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Dulacca Erergy Project Co PTY Ltg™? Alstralia Ordinary 100% Energy generatior
Duiacca Energy Project FnCro PTY Ltd!? Australia Ordinary 100% Holding company
Dulacca Energy Project Holdoo Co 2Ty Lid'? Australia Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Dulaccs WF Holdco PTY Lid' Australia Ordinary 100% Holding company
Dytfryn Broayn Limitea™ Uk Ordinary 1C0% Erergy generation
Fakrirg Limnited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Elecso. Camargue SARL? France Ordinary 160% Energy generation
Elecse. France 7 SARL? France Ordinary 90% Energy generation
Eterso: Frarce 11 SARL! France Ordinary 90% Energy generation
Elecsoi France 15 SARL® France Crdinary 100% Energy generation

Elecso: France 19 SARLY France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
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Name

Hdhas araan 7 rr R TR b knar s e T S A ST S

Elecsol France 25 SARL”
Elecsol Francea 23 SARL?
Elecsol Frarce 41 SAQL
Elecsol Haut Var SARL®
Elios Enargy 2 France SALY

Eleos Energy 2 Limited

Elios Energy 3 Franco SAST

Eoos Frergy Fold rge 2 Limstad™

Elic

4]

cnergy Howdings 3 Limited™
Ehns Erergy Holdros Limited™

Eiios Renewabile crengy Limizea™

Clviz Developrnent Firance mited™*

Elvia Hodings rnited

Elivia Homes {Central) Limited ™!

Elvia Homes (Dormnart 21 armitedtt
Elivia Homes (Grarge Road] Lirmited”
Einvia Horres (Netley) Limited™

"

Elvia Momes (Soutnern) Limited®!

Elvva Hormes Suroiton) L

Flvia Gxford Limmiteatt

Elvd South Limritegt?

Country of

incorpaoration shares

France
France
France
France

France

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

Class of

Principal

Holding activity

,,,,,, B e T

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
QOrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
QOrdinary

Crdinary

Ordinary
Deferred
Preference

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Crdinary

Ordinary

Qrdinary

Ordinary

Qrdinary

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
106%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Erergy generation
Erergy gereration
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding cormpany
Holding company
Holding company
Construction of

domestic buildings

Frnanciai services
holding companies

Construction of
domestic buildings
Construction of
domestic buitdings

Construction of
domestic buildings
Development of
building projects

Construction of
domestic buildings

Construction of
domestic buildings
Development of
building prajects
Developoment of
building projects

Construction of
domestic buldings
Buying and selling of
owri real estate

Constructior of
domestic buldings
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

R Y E Y £ 2B s w i S B o RE TG A E B B AR g 0 g L3

Elvia Soulhern Limled -
Ellicombe Limited™

Energy “ower Resources Limited™

EP= Ely Lirmmited™”

EPR Eye L'mited™
ERP= Glarford Limited”™
£

PH Rerewagle Energy Limited”
EPR Seotland Lirrzed™
£ Thetford Dimited™
fucalyntus Energy Hodings

Eucaiyptus Energy Limited”™

Fexweli Energy Limited”

Fern Erergy Cour Heldings Limited”™

Fern Energy rloldings Limited”

Fern Erergy Lirnited””

Fern Erergy Wind Howdings Limited™

Fern Fibre Limited™

Fern Healthcare Holdings Limited™
Fern Infrastructure Limited™

Fern Remewabie Energy Limited”
Fern Kooftop Sotar (A} Limited™

Fern Rooftop Soiar (BED)”

Fern Rocfiop Sotar (Zestec) Limited™

Fern Trading Developrment Limited”

Fern Trading Group Limited!

Fern UK Power Developments Limniteg™

Ficrophos Limited™
Four Burrows Limited™

Fraisthorpe Wing Farm Limited™

Lirmited™

Country of

incorporation shares

Class of

LK

UK

UK

UK
UK
UK
LUK
UK
UK
UK
LK
UK
UK
UK
LK
UK
UK
UK
UK
LK
UK
UK
LK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
UK

Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary

Holdmg

et "B D

100%

100%

16G%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
160%
106%
100%
100%
106%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Principal
actnnty

BRI o s L G R £

Constructlon of

domestic buildings
Buying and selling of

own reat estate
Energy generation

Energy project
develeprment and
management
services

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding compary
Energy generaticn
Energy generation
Hclding company
Holdirg company
Energy generation

olding company

olding company

olding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company

oldirg company
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generaticn
Holding comipany
Holding company
Holding company
Supply of fertitiser
Energy generaticn

Energy generation
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Name

s e bt PG AEEHOR HE SRR R ARYROARRPIOTORT T R,

Geriaff Energy Lmited?

Gigarer Fibre wid™

Giganet Lirnited™

Glenchamber Wind Energy Limwed?™
Grarge Wina Farrr Limeed™
Cuardbnae SP z o.c!

Haroourne Power Limited”

Fiayrnaxer (MoLrt Mill} Ld™

Fayrnaker iNatewood) Holoings wrniteg™

Haymaker (Natewood Ltg”™

Haymalker (Osklands) Hotongs Lirnred™
Hayrmnaker (Oaklanas) Lid”™

Helrm Power Z Lirmiteg]”

Felm Fower Limited™

Higher Krapp Farm Limited”™

Hill Eng Farm it

Hallarmaos mited™

Hill Reserve Power Limited”
Hirss 5PV 1 Limited™
Immingham 2ower Limited™
Iryvell Power imited™

Jameson Roan Energy Limiteg™

Jurassic Fibre Holdings Limitec™
Jurassic Fiore Limted

Hilr: Power Lirmiteg™
Larigan Fowsr Lraten ™

Lernam Soar mitea”

L

-~

tle 7 Scar Liruted™

Littieten Solar Farm Limrted”

LIU Communicatons Lidg™

Logaon Fower Limites™

Country of
incorporation

Ak B A R S B B Y T

UK

UK

UK
UK
Poland
UK
UK
UK,
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK
UK
(Sh
UK
Uk

UK

UK
UK
UK
LK
UK

UK

UK

Class of

shares

COrdinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Qrdnary
COrdinary
Ordirary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary

Crdinary

Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Holding activity

Principal

100%

160%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
1G0%
100%
100%
100%
100%
90%

80%

1%
106%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

Dormant company

Fibre network
productiorn

Fibre rietwork
production

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Holding company
Erergy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding ccmpany
Holding coempany
Energy generation
Energy generation
Enerqy generation
Energy genaration
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy gereration
Erergy generation
Holding campany

Fibre netwaork
production

Erergy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Ernergy generation
Energy generation

Fibre netwark
production

Erergy generation

T
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of
Name incorporation _ shares
lL.oveaean Limitag™ UK Ordinary
Lumimance Solar Limileg™ UK Ordinary
M1Z Soluttons Limited™ UK Ordinary
Mangton Tharre Limited” UK Ordinary
March Erergy Limited” UK Ordinary
Marder 2ower Lirmied™” UK Orchnary
Marley Thaich Salar Limited” UK Crdinary
Meacows Farm Limited™ UK Ordinary
Melbourn Sclar Lirmited™ UK Ordinary
Melton LG Energy Lrnited” UK Ordinary
Melton LG Holaing Lmited” UK Ordinary
Meltan LG ROC Limited™ UK Ordinary
Melton Renewaple Erergy (Holzirgs, Uimited™ UK Ordinary
Meltor Renawanle Erergy Newco Limited™ UK Ordinary
Melton Renewanle Energy UK Limited UK Ordinary
Mill Hiii Farm Solar Limited"™ UK Ordinary
Mingay Farm Howing [ mited” UK Ordinary
MSP Decoy tg™ UK Crdinary
MSP Strete Ltg™ UK Crdinary
MEP Tregassow Limited™ UK Ordinary
MTS Hachlands Solar Ltd™ UK Ordinary
Neverr Power Limited™ UK Crdinary
New Row Farm Limited” UK Ordinary
MNewlands Solar Limsted” UK Crdinary
Niris Farrm Lrited” LK Crdinary
North Perrott Fruit Farn Limited™ UK Ordinary
Nortawich Power Limited® UK Ordinary
Notos Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary
Ogmare Power Limitea” UK Ordinary
Cldhall Energy Recovery Holdings Lmiteg” UK Ordinary
One Ashford Healthcare Lirmited UK Ordinary
One Hatheld Hospital Limited LK Crdinary

Principal

Holding activity

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
105%
160%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

89%

S0%

DR R S E e o B PRSI L RS, R ks s h e T SR

Erergy generation
Erergy generation
Holding campany
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Hotding company
Holding company

Asset leasing
company

Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy gereration
Energy gereration
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Erergy generation
Holding company

Provision of
healthcare services

Prowision of
healthcare services
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
Name ) ) incorporation shares Hoiding jvi -
Cne Heaithcare Parrars Lirmited UK Ordinary a5% Holding cornpany
Orty Wedgefiil Soar FHolaings Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Haolding cormpany
Oria Wedgehiil Solar Lirmiited™ UK Ordinary 100% £nergy generation
Falfreys Barton Limnted” UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Parciau Hold ngs Limitec” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Farciau Lirmited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy aeneration
Par< Broadbard Limitag™ UK Qrdinary 100% Fibre network
production
Pearrnat Sofar 2 Lid” LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Bichfore {Condover Airfield & Stockoatch; N 5 . ;
L rentect' LIK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Bitts Farr Limitec™ LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Forthos Solar Limited UK Ordinary 100% Haiding company
Pyms Lare Solar Ltd™ UK Ordnary 100% Energy generation
Cuegens Park Road Erergy Limited™ UK COrdinary 100% Energy generation
‘ . . Care services for a
3 ord Care _imiad” i 00% .
Rangefora Care L d UK Ordinary 100% retirernert vilage
Rangeford Cherizey Limvted”™ UK Qrdinary 100% Redrement viliage
development
Rangeford Cirencester Lim ted” UK Ordinary 100% Retrement vikage
- development
. Retirement wilage
angeford Dorking Lirmited” { : 10C%
Range! Dorking L UK Ordinary 0C% developrent
Rangeforc Holdirgs crmited™” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
. ; - Retirerment willage
angeiord Fickerng Limited UK 100%
Rangeford Fickenng Lim LUK Crdinary 0% developraent
"
Rangefore RAP Limited"” UK Ordinary 100% Retirement willage
development
Rangefora Renrement Living Holaings Ltd™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
= + il
Fange‘ord Stapieford Uirmied” UK Ordinary ~ 100%  eurementvillage
3 development
Rescres Farrn Lrrited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Redlake Power Lirmited UK Ordinary 10C% Erergy generation
Rystor Estale Lrmitec UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Sarnrmat SARL? France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Setoy Power Lmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
t
572 Figre Limited® UK Crcinary 1007% Fibre network

production
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

W T

Singrug Holdings Limited™
Singrug Limited™

Six Hills Lane (Ragdale] Limited
Skelbrocke Energy Limited”

Slaughilerygals Lirrsled”

Snetterton Renewable Power Fuels Limited”

Snetterton Renewable Power Hoidings Limited”

Snetterton Renewalzie Power Limited™”

Sclarf LPOR SARL?
Solarfi SPOL SARL®
Solarfi SPO2 SARL®
Solarfi SPO4 sanp?
Solarfi SRO5 SARL®
Solarfi SPO8 SARL!
Solarfi SPLO SARL®
Southcombe Farm Limited™

St Asapn Power _imted”

Steadfast Parkhouse Solar Limeted™

Steadfast Rudge Solar Ltd™

Steadfast Shiotor Belinger Solar Limited™

Stellar Power Lirned”

il

tonaynill Erergy Limited®

L.

Suls Energy Limited”
Surrmersior Erergy Limited”™

Sunley Crayfern Lavant LLP™Y

Swish Fibre Contracung Lirited?®

Swish Fbre Limited®

Swash mbre Netwaorks Lta®

Swich Fbire Services Limitad®

Swish Fibre Yorishire®

Swish Trad'ng Limited”

=%

Country of Class of
incorporation shares
LUK Ordinary
LK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Crdinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK NA

UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
LK Ordinary

s

Principal
!:-!glding Wactivity ‘
100‘7 Holding company
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
160% Energy generation
150% Energy generation
100% Supply of biomass

fuel
100% Holding company
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Energy gereration
100% Energy generation
1007 Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Dormiant company
100% Holding company
100% Energy generation
50% MNA
100%  eon
80% Holding company
ook Fire Tetwor
80% Holding company

PRT TR
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

T T e ST

TGO Solar 102 Limited”

TGC Soar 107 Lir

TGE Solar 68 Uim

TGC Solar 83 Ly

Sited™
ited™

ted”

Trhe Fern Power Cormpany Limited™

The Holles Solar Farm Limited™

Tikngnam Power

Lirm ted"”

Tadhils Erergy Limrtea™

Tredown Tarm Limited”™

Turves Solar Limted™

UKSE 15 Solar Lienited™

tUnited Mines Energy L mited”

VCSE Lig”

Victoria sclar

teg

Y rers Energy Limited

Weref Limited

Voimafrance 01 SARLS

Veitafrance 05 SA

Wolafrance 12 5ARL0

Voliafrance SARL
Vorocoss Limited”

Vorboss US inc®

WadowiCk Creer L

Westwood Power

2L

a

Lirr ted™

Westwood Soar birrted”

Country of Class of
incorporation shares

UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
UK Ordinary
USA Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Qrdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary

R TS

Principal

Holdi[lg activity

100%
100%
100%
106%
100%
100%
100%
10G%
100%
100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

S b s st e SR el S RS radnnn B

Erergy generatinn
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Fibre network
production

Erergy generation
Holding company

Fibire network
production

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company

Fibre network
production

Retrement village
operator

Service charge
administrator

Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation

Energy generation




Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal

Name ‘ . incorporation  shares ~~  Holding activity
Wethewwen Energy rmited™ UK " Orwinery  100%  Energy gereraton ?
Whart 2owear Limited™ UK Crdinary 106% Energy gerteration 1
Whidcon Farm Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation |
Whonney Hil Energy Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation f
Wincele 5clar Howdings Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Holdimg company ‘
Wolverhamoton Power Lig™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation !
Wryde CrofWing Farm Lirmtegd! ™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation !
W5 Bradford Umited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WhE Huliavingron Holdings Limites™ LK Qrdinary 100% Holding company
WhE Hullavingion Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation i
WSZ Park Wail Limited” K Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WSE Pyde Deove Limites™ LUK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
Zesteo Aszet Management Lirniteg”™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Acquired after year end Date

o Jggrtops %HBBD)U mmd v ot WOQ/OB/ZOZZ

Cuckon internet Lid 31/08/2022

Vieefi Digital Limnited 13/07/2022

406 Limited 22/11/2022

Subsigiar os exemipt from aadit by virue of s480A of the Companes Act 2008
Tsubsidigries exerrpt from audit by virtue of s479A of the Companies Act 2006,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Dlssolved or sold during the year and up untli sngnmg — ~ Date
Beinreur Ho \(ﬁ'r:wmgh; tvmte T 2‘0/07/2021
Ridge Wind Acquisition |imited 20/07/2021
Ferr Erergy RidgeWind Acguistions Lim ed 14/09/2021
Ferr Energy RidgeW:ind Mo dings imited 21/09/2021
Ferr Energy Partnerships Hicldirgs L mited 21/09/2021
Fraisthorpe iHolding) Lemited 29/03/2022
DY Cldhall Erergy Recovery Limited 13/0972022
Comm2l Lta 15/09/2022
Darlng:on Pon: Hodoo Pty Limited 08/07/2022
Darlingtor Pont Sciar Farm Py Limited 08/07/2022
Daringtor Point Suphaldoo Py Lmited 0B/07/20022
Nard-o Powsr Development L mited 2371272021
Voyrnin<angas \Ahnd Farm Oy 2311212021
SalLnamaa Wird Farm DOy 23/12/2021
The reg'stered office of all companies listed acove s a0 Floor 33t o Lordorn, England, ECiN 2HT

except for tnose set oul Deow.

1

[« ™~

TS

n

1

u. Grzybowska 2/29, 00 151, Warsaw, Poland

Pinzent Mascns LLR Capidal Square, 58 Morrison Streel tdinfurgn, Scotland, EH3 86P
1 Wes: Regent Sireet Glasgow, G2 1AP

22 rue Alphonse ae Neuv lle, 75017 Pars, France

&tk Fioor, 2 Grand Cana. Square, Dubin 2, D02 AZ42. Ireland

Tre Camrage Adouse, Stauon Works, Staton Rord, Caveroon, WarwiCxshire, Urited Kingdam, CV35 8PE

Zone ndusete de Courtre 115 Rue Du Mourelet 34000 Avigron, rrance

13 Salsbury Plzce, Longon, Erglana, WiFE LF

te}

The Corporaton Trust Company, Corporalon Trust Center 1209 Orange Sueer, Wilmington 15807,
United States

4tk Floor Salure Court, 20 Castle Tarrace, Eainburgs, Scotland, E-1 2EN

Ancilo House, Mercury Par< Wycormoe Larne, Wooburn Green, —ioh Wycooe, Sncland, =P10 T4+
ceve, 25107 Colling Trreet, Melbourre Victona, 3300, Australia

Beaufort Court, Egg Farm Lane, K ngs Langey, Fertfordsh e W52 BLR

/-8 Suatfore Piace, London, Ergard, WiC LAY

The crecters beleve that the carrying value of the nvestments is supported by ther unzarlyirg net asseats
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5 APPENDIX — SHARE PRICE PERFORMANCE (UNAUDITED)

Fern’s share price has performed in line with targets

Fern Trading Limited 15 an urlistea company Every month, our Board of Directors agrees a price at which it
o issug new shares Tne share prce s unaudited.

The figures below incluge the srare price of the previous parent inow Forn Trading Group Limited) as wel

as this entity,

Share price growth since inception: Fern Trading Limited

19
18 W

-

16 P

15 )Nj"“‘”"”

14 I
W@

13 s
MWMM

12 -

11

1.0
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Performarce 1s calculated based on the sae price for Ferm's shares at 2 June each year. The share price is
net subect to audit by Ernst & Young LLP

Annual discrete parformance

Financial Year Discrete share price performance
June 20Z1-22 9.91%

June 2020-21 | " 4.87%
Jre20is20 o  o3m
June 2018-19 6.23%
June20i7iE . 1.05%
Jmé 2016—17 | - - 7 5.54%
Juné 2315-—1’5 - | 3.83%

June 2@13—14 3.72%

June 2Ulé~13 - 3.57%

June 201112 7 1.02%

Saurce Octopus Investments Limited, 2 June 2072,
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Directors and advisers

Divectors Registarved office

PS Latham ¢ 6th Floor, 33 Holborn,
KW ey ! London Englare ECHN 22T

PG Barlow
T Artrur lappos tindependent sudiiors
P oErnst & Yourg LLP
Company secretary i Bedfora House
Cctopus Company Secretaral Servi ! 16 Bedford Steer,
i Belast BT2 70T
Company number

12601626

Forward-locking statements

This Annual Renort contains certan forward-iocking staterrents related to the Company's fulure busines

o

rese stalernents are basad o the current

i

and Anarcal peforrmarce and fuiure events or ceveloamenits.
knowiedge and expeciations of management and are sulject 1o assumpticrs, riks and ancerainr es, soms

of which gre retated 1o factars that are beyond the conud! of tne Company. Accordirgly, no assurance can

be gwver that any parhicalar expectation wil, oe mel and forwars coking siatements regarding past rends or

activities shoula not e ta<en gs a represcrtation that such trends or actviies wil continue n the future Past
cerformance carnot ne reiied on a3 a guide o future performarce. Noth ng 1 this Arnual Beport sould be
-~

consirued as a profit forecast




